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Letter to Shareholders 

Dear Shareowners, 

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all at the Annual General Meeting 
of your Company. The most enduring moment has come again, on such an 
opportune occasion I am here to express my gratitude & share my feeling of joy 
with you all as we have already climbed the ladder of success for last 28 years and 
entering into 29th year of our existence as a company “KCL Infra Projects 
Limited”. 

To begin with, let me thank you for the confidence reposed and the support 
extended to the Company. It is your confidence and the support that motivates us 
to stay on the course. Our goals are clearly defined-to get smarter and bigger as 
we take on the huge opportunity challenge resulting from the transformation that 
is visible on the Infrastructure Sector. 

It is my pleasure to present to you, our performance for the financial year 2022-23 and major events after the end of the said 
financial year. Over the years we have continually worked on expanding our capabilities and horizons, moving closer every year to 
our vision of becoming a leader in infrastructure sector. 
 

Performance 2022-23 

During the Financial Year 2022-2023 the company has come up with the Right issue offer amounting to Rs. 47,39,58,000.00/- to which 
the company has received great response as the issue was oversubscribed. I thank all the shareholders for keeping faith towards our 
company, with this we assure  our stakeholders that we will continue to grow in the years to come and will be successful in maintaining 
your confidence in the company. 

Our Company has obtained license for TV Channel Satellite Rights from Ministry of Information and Broadcasting for a period of 10 
years and entered into an agreement with VBB Broadcasting Private Limited. For running the channel in the name of BVG. Further a 
Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) is submitted to meet the roll-out obligation for operationalization of the said TV channel and also 
obtained all necessary clearances from Wireless Planning and Coordination (WPC) and Network Operations Control Centre (NOCC). 

Under Budget 2023-24, Infrastructure Finance Secretariat is being established to enhance opportunities for private investment in 
infrastructure that will assist all stakeholders for more private investment in infrastructure, including roads, urban infrastructure, 
Technology, Township & Project Development, Joint Venture, and Partnership. Keeping this as our vision company is planning to 
launch new infrastructure projects in the upcoming years.  

In continuation to this we are planning to launch mobile application for supporting various sectors such as infrastructure, health services 
and technology. With this our company is trying to create an intense push through more development in technology to ensure world class 
infrastructure in India. 

While this may be the conclusion of my message, let me assure you that what we are looking at is actually the beginning of an exciting 
new chapter in our growth odyssey. With the continuing support of all our stakeholders, to whom we owe much of the success of our 
strategy, and guided by our visionary promoters, we have embarked on the next phase of progress and expansion, which shall lay the 
foundation for your Company to get bigger, and of course smarter. 

I thank all the employees for their sustained endeavors in meeting the challenges posed before the organization. We will continue to 
work for the enhancement of stakeholder value through profitable growth and remain committed to justify the trust reposed by you in us. 
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NOTICE 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 28thAnnual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of KCL Infra Projects 
Limited will be through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Mode on Saturday30th September, 2023, at 
12.00 P.M. to transact the following businesses: 
 
Details of the meeting are as follows: 
Topic: 28th Annual General Meeting 

Time: September 30, 2023 12:00 P.M. India 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

i. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the company for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2023 including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 the Statement of Profit and Loss Accounts and 
Cash flow statement for the year ended on that date along with reports of the Board of Director’s and the Auditor’s 
thereon. 

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 
and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered 
and adopted.” 

ii. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Kumar Chourasiya (DIN: 08302587), who is liable to retire by rotation 
at this Annual General meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, who retires by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to 
retire by rotation.” 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

i. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 
 

Appointment of Mrs. Devyani Chhajed as Independent director of the company in place of Mrs. Sunita Vora  
on account of completion of her tenure of two term of 10 years. 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(‘Listing Regulations’), on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee for appointment of 
Mrs.Devyani Chhajed (DIN : 10276186) as an Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. September 30th, 2023 who 
has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for the independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the 
Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations and is eligible for appointment, and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act and , be and is hereby, appointed as a 
Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a period of five 
years with effect from September 30th, 2023 till September 30, 2028 , in place of Mrs. Sunita Vora  on account of 
completion of her tenure of two term of 10 years as independent director of the company. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such 
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
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ii. Payment of remuneration to Managing director of the Company: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the Rules framed thereunder, 
(including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) , and the Articles of Association 
of the Company and subject to approval of Nomination & Remuneration Committee  as may be necessary, the approval of 
the Members be and hereby accorded for the payment of the remuneration to Managing director of the Company up to the 
limit of Rs.50,00,000 (Rupees.Fifty Lakhs Only) 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms of remuneration as set out in the Explanatory Statement of this Resolution 
shall be deemed to form part hereof and in the event of any inadequacy or absence of profits in any financial year or years, 
the aforementioned remuneration comprising salary, perquisites and benefits approved herein be continued to be paid as 
minimum remuneration to the Managing Director, subject to such other approvals as may be necessary. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board, be and is hereby authorised to delegate all or any of the powers herein 
conferred, to any Director(s) or Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer(s) / Authorised 
Representative(s) of the Company, to do all such acts and take such steps, as may be considered necessary or expedient, to 
give effect to the aforesaid resolution(s). 
 
 
 

By order of the Board 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 

                                                              Sd/-                                                   Sd/-   
 

Date: August 14,2023                       Mohan Jhawar              Rahul Khande 
Place: Thane                                                        Managing Director        Director 

   DIN:00495473                DIN:08095192     
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NOTES: - 

a) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Special 
Business under item no 1 as stated above in annexed hereto. 

b) In view of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its circular dated May 5, 2022 General Circular No. 
2/2022 with reference General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05,2020 and General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021 and SEBI vide its SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS_Div2/P/CIR/2022/079 dated June 03, 2022 has permitted 
the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the 
members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), and MCA Circulars, the 
AGM of the Company being conducted through VC / OAVM herein after called as “e-AGM” 

c) Since this General Meeting is held through VC/OAVM the physical attendance of members is dispensed with and no 
proxies would be accepted by the Company pursuant to the relevant MCA Circulars. 

d) No attendance slip/route map has been sent along with this Notice of the Meeting as the meeting is held through 
Audio Visual means. 

e) The attendance through VC/OAVM is restricted and hence members will be allowed on first come first serve basis. 
However, attendance of Members holding more than 2% of the shares of the Company, and Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Auditors will not be restricted on first come first serve basis. 

f) Members attending the Meeting through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purposes of reckoning of Quorum under 
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

g) In line with the MCA Circulars and the SEBI Circular, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website 
of the Company at www.kclinfra.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. 
BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. 

h) Members are requested to notify immediately changes, if any, in their registered addresses to the Company's Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agents Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd., 17/20, Jafferbhoy Industrial Estate, Makwana 
Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai- 400059. Members are also requested to furnish their Bank details to the 
company's Share Transfer Agents immediately for printing the same on the dividend warrants/Cheques to prevent 
fraudulent encashment of the instruments. 

i) Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form to 
eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management. Members can contact the 
Company for assistance in this regard. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their 
Client ID and DP ID numbers for easy identification of attendance at the meeting and number of shares held by them. 

j) Members holding shares in physical form in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to send to 
the Company, the details of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one 
folio. A consolidated share certificate will be returned to such Members after making requisite changes thereon. 

k) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing 
paperless compliances by Companies and has issued a circular on April 21, 2011 stating that the service of document 
by a Company can be made through electronic mode. 

l) In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under and 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the Members are provided with the facility to cast their vote electronically, 
through the e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), on all the resolutions 
set forth in this Notice. Resolution(s) passed by Members through remote e-voting/ e-voting is deemed to have been 
passed as if they have been passed at the AGM. 

m) CS Vishakha Agrawal of Vishakha Agrawal & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. 39298) 
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process (including the Ballot Form 
received from the Members who do not have access to the e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner. 

n) A member may participate in the general meeting even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but 
shall not be allowed to vote again. 

o) The chairman shall, at the general meeting at the end of discussion on the resolution on which voting is to be held, 
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allow voting with assistance of scrutinizer, by using an e-voting system for all the members who are present at the 
general meeting but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facilities. 

p) If a company opts to provide the same electronic system as used during the remote e-voting during the general 
meeting, the said facility shall be in operation till all the resolutions are considered and voted upon in the meeting and 
may be used for voting by the member attending the meeting and who have not exercised their vote through remote e-
voting. 

q) The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on following Stock Exchanges in India: Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400001 

r) The Company has designated an exclusive E-Mail ID called cs@kclinfra.com for redressal of Members' 
complaint/grievances. In case you have any queries/complaints or grievances, than please write to us 
atcs@kclinfra.com 

s)  Members can avail facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them in physical form pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members desired to avail of this facility may send their 
nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 duly filled into the office of Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd., 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. Members holding shares in electronic mode may contact their 
respective Depository Participants for availing this facility.       

The instructions to shareholders for E Voting and joining Virtual Meetings are as under: 
Step 1 :Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 

demat mode.  
 
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-

individual shareholders in demat mode.  
 

(i) The voting period begins on Wednesday 27th September 2023 at 9 am and ends on Friday 29th September 2023 at 5 pm. 
During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
the cut-off date Friday 22nd September 2023 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by 
CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 
(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed 
entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. 
However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a 
negligible level.  
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This 
necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-
voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites 
of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to 
register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process.  

      Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode.  

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 
to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders 
are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 
facility. 
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   Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id 
and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website 
directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 
registration option. 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number 

and PAN No. from e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system 
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 
where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 
Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of 

NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click 
on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
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(i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 
(DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or 
call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual 
shareholders in demat mode. 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3) Now enter your User ID  

 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
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c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting 
of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
 
 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in 

Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 

for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 

contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank Details 

OR Date of 

Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded 

in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, 

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to 

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the 

demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company 

opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person 

and take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

 

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in 

this Notice. 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name > on which you choose to vote. 

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for 

voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO 
implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If 

you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify 

your vote. 

(xiii) Once you “CONFRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 

click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 

verification. 

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only. 
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 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong 

mapping. 

 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have 

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to 

verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address  cs@kclinfra.com , if they have voted from individual tab 
& not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED 
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of 
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

2. For Demat shareholders -Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant 
(DP)  

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. 
Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for e-voting. 
 

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. 
 



 
 
 

 
 

12 
 

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 
 

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting. 
 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request in advance at least 2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during 
the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 
account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the 
company suitably by email.  
 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system available during the EGM/AGM. 

 
10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the EGM/AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders 
may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the 
meeting. 
 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 
 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

      2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository  Participant 
(DP)  

      3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write 
an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. 
Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill 
Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT ATTHE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING (IN PURSUANCE OF REGULATION 36 (3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING   OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) REGULATIONS, 2015: -

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Name of Director Mr. Manoj Kumar Chaurasiya 
2 Date of Birth 02/07/1975 
3 Date of Appointment / Re-Appointment 31/08/2019 

4 Qualification          B.Sc. (Computer Science) 

5 Expertise Education, Training & Placement. 

6 Other Directorship held excluding Private 
Companies as on31st March, 2023 

          NIL 

7 Chairman/Member of the Committee of Board 
of the Directors of the Company. 

  NIL 

8 No. of Shares held as on 31st March 2023   NIL 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to section 102 of Companies Act, 2013) 

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory statement sets out all 
material facts relating to the businesses mentioned under item no.1 of the accompanying notice:- 

ITEM NO. 1 

On the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and with the approval of shareholders in this AGM ,the 
company has appointed Mrs.Devyani Chhajedas an an Independent Director for a term of 5 years with effect from September 30, 
2023, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company. In terms of section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board 
Governance, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board have recommended the appointment of Mrs. Devyani Chhajed 
as an Independent Director pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Company has also received a notice in writing from a member proposing the candidature of Mrs. Devyani Chhajedto be 
appointed as Director of the Company. The Company has received a declaration from Mrs. Devyani Chhajed confirming that she 
meets the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. Further, the Company has also received Mrs. Devyani Chhajed consent to act as a Director in terms of section 152 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and a declaration that she is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 
of the Companies Act, 2013. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Devyani Chhajed fulfils the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, for her appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company and she is independent of the management. Considering Mrs. Devyani Chhajed knowledge and experience, 
the Board of Directors is of the opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to appoint her as an Independent Director for a 
period of five years with effect from September 30, 2023. 

Brief profile of Mrs. Devyani Chaajed is given below: 

Mrs. Devyani Chhajed is a s a qualified Chartered Accountant & company secretary .With this she is holding Bachelor,s and Master’s 
degree in Law.She is currently working as a practicing Chartered Accountant and having an experience of 5 years as a practicing 
chartered accountant .With this she is having rich knowledge in Finance,accounting Income tax Gst Laws and also in the area of 
Corporate Social Responsibility and Corporate Governance and expertise in internal audit and Risk Management etc. 

She has successfully qualified Online Proficiency Self Assessment Test for Independents Directors Databank on September 09,2022 
conducted by Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

      Item No.2-Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the Rules framed thereunder, (including any statutory 
modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) ,and the Articles of Association of the Company and subject 
approval of Nomination & Remuneration Committee  as may be necessary,the approval of the Members be and hereby accorded for 
the payment of the remuneration to Managing  director of the Company. 

Pursuant to Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to Directors of the company. 
The approval of the Members pursuant to Section 197(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time is now sought 
for the remuneration payable to Managing directors of the Company. 

By order of the Board 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 

                     Sd/-      Sd/-   
 

Date: August 14,2023                   Mohan Jhawar                                                   Rahul Khande 
Place: Thane                                 Managing Director                                                  Director 
                                                       DIN:00495473                     DIN:08095192     
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BOARDS’REPORT 

To, 

The Members of 

KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your company (“the Company” or 
“KCL Infra Projects limited”) along with the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023. 

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

    The financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized below: - 

          (Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars Current 
year 

(2022-23) 

Previous Year 

(2021-22) 

 
Revenue from Operation (Including 
other Operating Income) 

1953.90 1557.15 

Other Income 203.24 73.52 

Total Income 2157.14 1630.67 

Expenses (other than Finance Cost) 2002.67 

 

1495.93 

Finance Cost 48.43 69.72 

Total Expenses 2051.10 1565.65 

Profit Before Tax 106.03 65.02 

Less: Current Tax 27.57 16.85 

Tax: Deferred Tax/Earlier Year (0.12) 0.09 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 78.58 48.07 

Surplus brought forward from 
previous years 

338.38 290.31 

Amount available for appropriations 416.96 338.38 

Earnings per share (T) :   

Basic 0.06 0.18 

Diluted 0.06 0.18 
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2. STATE  OF  COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 

Despite of difficult market conditions, healthy competition in the market and lack of interest of the investors, the 
performance of our Company has been satisfactory and has been able to achieve the healthy growth for its 
stakeholders. The performance evaluations of the Company are as under; 

Revenue: During the financial year 2022-23, the revenue of the Company has increased from Rs. 1630.67 Lacs to 
Rs.2157.14 Lacs 

Expenses: In Financial Year ended 31 March, 2023, the   purchase & cost expense of the Company has Increased 
from Rs. 1565.65 Lacs to Rs.2051.10 Lacs as compared to the previous financial year ended on 31st March, 2022. 
Also the finance cost of the Company is Decreased by 21.29 Lacs as compared to the previous financial year 2021-
22. 

Depreciation: Depreciation decreased from Rs 7.99 Lacs to Rs. 7.59 Lacs in the current year. Depreciation is in 
accordance with the provision of Schedule II of the Act. 

Profit before Tax: In the financial year 2022-23 the Total Revenue of the Company has Increased by 32.28% as 
compared to previous financial year 2021-22 consequently the profit has Increased by 63.07% and reached at Rs. 
106.03 Lacs. 

Share Capital: Equity share capital changed from 526.62 lacs toRs. 2480.15 lacs, 

Earnings per share: Basic & diluted Earnings per share (EPS) is Rs.0.06 per share as against Rs.0.18 per share in the 
previous year. 

Tax Expenses: In financial year 2022-2023, the tax expenses has Increased to 27.56 Lacs as compared to 16.85 lacs 
in the previous financial year 2021-2022. 

Tax Expenses : Increase / 
(Decrease) 

Increase / (Decrease) in % 

 
Current Tax 10.71 63.62% 

 
Deferred Tax 0.16 188.85% 
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3. SHARE CAPITAL 
The company issued Offer Letter for right issue on August 17, 2023 for Subscribing to rights issue of up to 
23,69,79,000 (Twenty-Three Crores Sixty-Nine Lakhs Seventy-Nine Thousand) partly paid-up equity shares of face 
value of Rs.2.00  each at a price of Rs.2.00 per right share being at par with the existing face value of the equity shares  
for an amount aggregating up to Rs.47,39,58,000.00/- (Rupees forty-seven crores thirty-nine lakhs fifty-eight thousand 
only) on a rights issue basis to the eligible shareholders of KCL Infra Projects Limited  in the ratio of 9 (nine) rights 
shares for every 1 (one) equity share held by such eligible shareholders as on Friday, August 05, 2022, being the record 
date. The issue opening date was Monday, August 22, 2022 and issue closing date was September 05,2022. 

 
 
Further the details of Money received on application and First & Final call are mentioned below: 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. DIVIDEND: 

     Your Directors have considered it financially prudent in the long-term interest of the Company to reinvest the 

profits in the business of the Company to build a strong reserve base and grow the business of the Company. No 
final dividend has therefore been recommended for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 Management Discussion and Analysis as required under Listing Regulations has been annexed as “Annexure 5” 
which forms part of this report. 

 

 

PARTICULARS DATE NO. OF SHARES AMOUNT ( IN RS.) 

On Application @  
Rs. 0.50/- per Share 

 23,69,79,000 11,84,89,500 

 

On First & Final 
Call @ Rs.1.50/- per 
share 

 

Board meeting dated 24-
01-2023 

 

2,98,02,396  

 

4,47,03,594 

 

On Reminder to 1st 
& Final call @ 
Rs.1.50/-(with 
Interest @ 15% per 
annum)  

 

Board meeting dated 27-
02-2023 

 

2,14,00,573  

 

3,28,24,708.99  

(Principle Amount- 
Rs. 3,21,00,859.50/-  
Interest Amount- 
Rs. 7,23,849.49/- ) 
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6. PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

As per Companies Act, 2013 and as on date the company is neither having any Subsidiary Company u/s 2(87) nor any 
Associate Company u\s 2(6) and hence, do not call for any disclosure under this head. 

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

Your Company has incorporated the appropriate standards for corporate governance. Pursuant to Regulation 15(2) 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is not required to 
mandatorily comply with the provisions of certain regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.Hence, company is not filing Corporate Governance Report to stock exchanges 
quarterly till June 30th ,2022However from September 30th 2022 the company is mandatorily required to file 
Corporate Governance Report as per SEBI(LODR) Regulations 2015 . Corporate Governance Report is annexed as 
“Annexure 6”. 

8. ANNUAL RETURN 

The Extract of Annual Return as required under section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form MGT-9 is 
annexed here with for your kind perusal as“Annexure-2.”   

9. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company's internal financial control framework is commensurate with the size and operations of the business 
and is in line with requirements of the Act. The Company's internal financial controls framework is based on the 
three lines of defense model. The Company has laid down standard operating procedures and policies to guide the 
operations of the business. Unit heads are responsible to ensure compliance with the policies and procedures laid 
down by the management. Robust and continuous internal monitoring mechanisms ensure timely identification of 
risks and issues. The management, Statutory and Internal Auditors undertake rigorous testing of the control 
environment of the Company. The board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were 
adequate and effective during the financial year 2022-23. 

10.  DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON 

During the Year under review, the following changes have taken place in the Directors & KMPs of the Company. 

On October 1st ,2022, Mr. Mohan Jhawar was re-appointed as the Managing Director of the company. In compliance 

with the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any Statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 

2015, the composition of Board of Director and Key Managerial Personnel are as follows: 
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11.  DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria 
of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and 
Rules issued there under as well as Regulation 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the time being in force). 

12. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 The following Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the Financial Year 2022-23 

 
 

 

 

13. BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules issued there under, Regulation 17(10) of the Listing 
Regulations and the circular issued by SEBI dated 5th January, 2017 with respect to Guidance Note on Board Evaluation, the 
evaluation of the annual performance of the Directors/Board/Committees was carried out for the financial year 2022-23. 

SNO
. 

Key Managerial 
Person Name 

DIN/ PAN Designation Date of 
Appointment 

Date   of Re-
appointment 

Date 
ofCessation 

1 Mohan Jhawar 00495473 Managing 
Director 

06/10/2005 1/10/2022 - 

2 Sunita Vora 06486614 Non-Executive 
Director 

30/05/2013 01/10/2019 - 

3 Rahul Khande 08095192 Executive 
Director 

30/03/2018 30/03/2018 - 

4 Archit Yadav 07971657 Non-Executive 
Director 

07/09/2019 - - 

5 Manoj Kumar 
Chaurasiya 

08302587 Non-Executive 
Director 

07/09/2019 - - 

6 MoeenuddinMakr
ani 

08546964 Non-Executive 
Director 

14/02/2020 14/09/2020 - 

7 Sunny Khande EJXPK8836E Chief Financial 
Officer 

16/05/2016 - - 

8 Shivani Gupta DIYPK0793R Company 
Secretary 

01/09/2021 - - 

S. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength   No. of Directors 
Present 

1 30-05-2022 6 5 
2 22-07-2022 6 6 
3 05-08-2022 6 6 
4 17-08-2022 6 6 
5 15-09-2022 6 6 
6 14-11-2022 6 6 
7 09-12-2022 6 6 
8 24-01-2023 6 6 
9 13-02-2023 6 6 
10 27-02-2023 6 6 
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The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate governance requirements as prescribed by Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. The 
performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria 
such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis 
of the criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The Board and the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the 
criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board and committee meetings. In addition, the Chairman 
was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-Independent directors, performance of the board as a 
whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-
executive directors. The same was discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting of the Independent Directors, at 
which the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors was also discussed. 

14. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

     The Directors will be introduced to all the Board members and the senior management personnel such as Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary and various Department heads individually to know their roles in the organization and to 
understand the information which they may seek from them while performing their duties as a Director. And meeting may be 
arranged for the Independent Directors with aforesaid officials to better understand the business and operation of the 
Company.  

     As a part of continuous updating and familiarization with the Company, every Independent Director will be taken for visits to 
the factory or manufacturing units and other branch of the company where the officials of the various departments apprise 
them of the operational and sustainability aspects of the plants to enable them to have full understanding on the activities of 
the Company and initiatives taken on safety, quality etc. The Company may also circulate news and articles related to the 
industry from time to time and may provide specific regulatory updates. 

15.AUDITORS 

 M/s Scan & Co. (previously known as M.S. Singhatwadia& Co.,) Chartered Accountants, were  appointed as Statutory   
Auditors of the Company at the AGM held on 30th September, 2019, for a term of five consecutive years to hold office from 
the conclusion of that meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2024.  

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on May 7, 2018 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 
appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every Annual General Meeting. In view of such omission of 
proviso, agenda item relating to ratification of Statutory Auditors is not included in the Notice of ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.  

 16.AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Board has appointed M/s Scan & Co. (previously known as M.S. Singhatwadia& Co.,), Chartered Accountants to conduct 
the Statutory Audit for the year 2022-23. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors '  Repor t which 
require any clarification/explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-explanatory, and needs no further 
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explanation. Further the Auditors' Report for the financial year ended, 31st March, 2023 is annexed herewith for your kind 
perusal and information. 

17. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Board has appointed CS Vishakha Agrawal, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial 
year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is annexed herewith marked as 
“Annexure-3” to this Report. 

18.BOARD COMMITTEE 

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company had constituted the following Board Committees: 

1. Audit Committee; 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and 
3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee; 
4. Risk Management Committee; and 
5. Management Committee. 

The composition of all Committees has been stated under Corporate Governance Report forming an integral part of Annual 
Report.  

19. PARTICULARS  OF  EMPLOYEES 

The details in respect of employees of the Company will be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the 
Report and Accounts are being sent to the members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' 
particulars, which is available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on 
working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing AGM. If any member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such 
member may write to the Company Secretary of the Company in this regard. 

20.PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR/AND INVESTMENTS 

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the purpose for which the 
loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient are provided in the Financial Statement (Please refer to 
Note No.6 and 7 to the standalone Financial Statement). 

21.DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 

 As per the Provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into with the 
stock exchanges, corporate governance report with auditors' certificate there on and management discussion and analysis are 
attached, which form part of this report. 

 Details of the familiarization programmeof the independent directors are available on the website of the Company 
(www.kclinfra.com) 

 The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to provide Vigil Mechanism for employees including 
directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the 
Section 177(9) of the Act. The whistle blowing Policy is available on the company's website at (www.kclinfra.com) 
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22.DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Our Company is committed to provide the healthy environment to all its employees, the company has in place a Prevention of the 
Sexual Harassment Policy and an Internal complaints redressal mechanism as per the requirements of Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.There was no complaint received from any employee during the 
financial year 2022-23, hence no complaints are outstanding as on 31.03.2023. 

23.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

None of the transaction with related parties (related to business) falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act, Information on 
transactions with related parties pursuant to section 134 (3) (h) of the Act read with rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are given in “Annexure 1” in Form AOC-2 and same forms part of this report. 

24.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of conservation of 
energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities undertaken by the company during 
the year under review 

25.FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 

26. RISK MANAGEMENT 

In today's economic environment, Risk Management is a very important part of business. The main aim of risk management is to 
identify, monitor & take precautionary measures in respect of the events that may pose risks for the business. The Board reviewing 
the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically 
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis by keeping Risk Management Report before the Board & Audit 
Committee periodically. 

27.FIXED DEPOSITS/ DEPOSITS 

During the year under review your Company has not accepted or invited any fixed deposits from the public and there were no 
outstanding fixed deposits from the public as on the Balance Sheet date. 

Our Company has not accepted deposit from the public falling with in the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 along 
with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) rules, 2014. 

28.DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 164(2): 

None of the Directors of your Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors as specified under Section 164(2) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
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29. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS: 

During the financial year 2022-23, there were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which 
would impact the going concern status of your Company and its future operations. 

30. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee Comprises of Three Independent Directors and one executive director, namely Mr. Archit Yadav as 
Chairman, Ms. Sunita Vora as member, Mr. Mohan Jhawar as member and Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani as the member of the 
Committee. All recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

The Committee inter alia reviews Internal Control Systems and reports of Internal Auditors and compliance of various regulations. 
The Committee also reviews at length the Financial Statements before they are placed before the Board of Directors of the 
company. 

31. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

Stakeholders' relations have been cordial during the year, as a part of compliance, your Company has Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of your Company. There were no grievances pending as on 
31st March, 2023.A confirmation to this effect has been received from your Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

32.NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY: 

The Board has on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a policy for selection and 
appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration and the evaluation. The Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy is forming part of Director's Report as “Annexure 4”. 

33. PARTICIPATION IN THE GREEN INITIATIVE: 

Our Company continues to wholeheartedly participate in the Green Initiative under taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(MCA) for correspondences by Corporate to its Members through electronic mode. All the Members are requested to join the said 
program by sending their preferred e-mail addresses to their Depository Participant. 

34. INTERNAL AUDIT: 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s Jain Tiwaddi &Associate, Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors of your 
Company for financial year 2022-23. 

35. TRANSFER TO INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

As per the provisions of section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 and as per the rule 3 of the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (awareness and protection of investors) Rules, 2001, No Amount is pending to be transferred to IEPF. 
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36. CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE OF UNPUBLISHED PRICE SENSITIVE INFORMATION AND CODE OF CONDUCT 
UNDER SEBI (PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING) REGULATIONS, 2015  

Pursuant to Regulation 8 of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 the Board to Directors has formulated and 
adopted the “Code of Practices and Procedures for fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information” (Code of Fair 
Disclosure) of the Company. 

The Board has also formulated and adopted “Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading” (Code of Conduct) of the 
company as prescribed under Regulation 9 of the said Regulation. 

37. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT 

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to your Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2023. 

38. APPLICATION OR PROCEEDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCYAND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

There is no application made or no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. There was no instance 
of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution. 

39. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

40. IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE ACTION 

During the year under review, the Company has not failed to implement any Corporate Actions within the specified time limit. 

41. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS  

The Board of Directors of your Company acknowledges their sincere appreciation for the support extended by the statutory 
authorities, the stock exchanges, advisors, shareholders and staff of the Company for the valuable assistance, support and co-
operation extended to the Company and continuous support and faith reposed in the Company.                                                                                       

 

For, KCL Infra Projects Limited 

           Sd/-          Sd/-   
 

Date: August 14, 2023                    Mohan Jhawar                                          Rahul Khande 
Place: Thane                                   Managing Director                                       Director 
                                                         DIN:00495473                                               DIN:08095192                                                      
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ANNEXURE - 1 

       AOC-2 

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub 
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm's length basis: 

 
Name (s) of 

Related Party 
Nature of 

Relationship 
Duration of 

Contract 
Salient 
Terms 

  Dates of Approval bythe Board Amount (In Rs.) Amount paid as 
advance, if any 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm's length basis: 

 
Name (s) of 

Related Party 
Nature of 

Relationship 
Duration of                                                         

Contract 

 

 

Salient 
Terms 

     Dates of Approval by the Board Amount (In Rs.) Amount paid as 
advance, if any 

- 

- 

    - - 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- - 

- 

Note: The details of -all related party transactions as per Indian Accounting Standard 24 have been disclosed in Notes to Accounts 

of Financial Statement 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

KCL Infra Projects Limited 
Sd/- 

 

Mohan Jhawar  

DIN: 0049547  

Managing Director 
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                                         ANNEXURE – 2 

 
  

                                                  FORM NO.MGT-9   
                                           Extract of Annual Return as on The Financial Year Ended On 31st March 2023  

 
 

    
[Pursuant to section92(3) of the Companies Act,2013 and rule12(1 )of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

     
     

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:    
 

    

1. CIN L45201MH1995PLC167630 
  

2. Registration Date 21-07-1995 
  

3. Name of the Company KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
  

4. Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares/Indian Non Govt Company 

  

5. 
Address of the Registered office and contact 

details 
B-3/204, Saket Complex Thane (West) Thane MH 

400601 IN   

6. Whether listed company YES 
  

7. Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 
17-20, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate, 1st Floor, MakwanaRoad, 

Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059, India. 
Website :www.adroitcorporate.com 

  

  

    
 

II.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY   
 

    
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-  

S.No. 
Name and Description of main products/ 

services 
NIC Code of the 
Product/ service 

%  to total turnover of the company 

1 Other Civil Engineering Projects 4290 100% 
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity) 

i. Category-wise 
Shareholding 

       
    

        

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

% 
Chang
e 
during 
the 
year 

 

Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 
Share
s Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 
Share
s 

 

A. Promoters 

       

    

(1) Indian 

       

    

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Bodies 
Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Directors 3802831 0 3802831 14.44 3802831 0 3802831 

 

4.91 -9.54 

g) Directors 
Relatives 

2306064 0 2306064 8.76 22500480 0 22500480 29.03 20.27 

Sub Total : A(1) 6108895 0 6108895 23.20 26303311 0 26303311 33.93 10.73 

(2) Foreign            

a) NRI – 
Individuals 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
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b) Other – 
Individuals 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) Bodies 
Corporates 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total : A(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Total 
Shareholding of 
Promoters 
(A)=(A)(1) + 
(A)(2) 

6108895 0 6108895 23.20 26303311 0 26303311 33.93 0.00 

B. Public 
Shareholding 

       

    

(1) Institutions 

       

    

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) Central Govt. 29210 0 29210 0.11 29210 0 29210 0.04 0.00 

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Venture Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

i) Any Other 
(Specify) 

       

    

Sub Total : B(1) 29210 0 29210 0.11 29210 0 29210 0.04 -0.07 

(2) Non – 
Institutions 

       

    

a) Bodies        
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Corporates 

ai) Indian 

 

2630088                                                                                                                      938000 

 

3568088 13.55 

 

4967894 

 

938000 

 

5905894 

 

7.62 

 

-5.93 

aii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Individuals          

bi) Individual 
Shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital up to 
Rs. 1 Lakh 

6515132 

 

278630 

 

6793762 

 

25.80 

 

13500774 

 278630 

13779404 

 17.78 -8.03 

bii) Individual 
Shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 
1Lakh 

 

8259122 0 

 

8259122 

 

31.37 28890954 
 

0 

 

28890954 

 

37.27 

 

5.90 

c) Any Other 
(Specify)          

c-1) Non Resident 
Indians 
(Individuals) 

 

30680 0 30680 0.12 84430 0 84430 0.11 -0.01 

c-2) Directors 

 

250 0 250 00 250 0 250 00 00 

c-3) Clearing 
Member 

 

86195 0 

 

86195 0.33 

 

9241 0 9241 0.01 -0.32 

c-4) HUF 

 

1454798 `0 1454798 

 

5.53 

 

2513175 0 

 

2513175 

 

3.24 

 

-2.28 

Sub Total : B(2) 

 

18976265 

 

1216630 

 

20192895 

 

76.69 49966718 

 

1216630 

 

51183348 

 

66.03 

 

-10.66 

Total Public 
Shareholding 

 12166302 20222105       
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(B)=(B)(1) + 
(B)(2) 

19005475 76.80 49995928 1216630 51212558 66.07 -10.73 

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

       

    

a) Promoter & 
Promoter Group 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Public 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Sub Total : (C)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Total 
Shareholding of 
Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 
(C)=(C)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Grand Total (A + 
B + C) 25114370 

 

1216630 

 

26331000 

 

100.0
0 76299239 

 

1216630 

 

77515869 

 

100.0
0 0.00 

 

ii. Shareholding of 
Promoters (Fully Paid Up 
Equity Shares) 

    

        

S. 
No. 

Shareholder’s Name 
No .of Shares held at the beginning 

of the year 
No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

% 
Chan
ge 
durin
g the 
year 

  
No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of 
Shar

es 
Pled
ged / 
encu
mber
ed to 
total 
shar

No. of 
Shares 

% of total Shares of 
the company 

%of 
Share

s 
Pledg
ed / 
encu
mber
ed to 
total 
share
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e s 

1 

MOHAN 
DEOKISHAN 

JHAWAR HUF. 854650 3.25 23.40 8542000 11.02 

 

10.00 7.77 

2 
MANISHA 
JHAWAR 332187 1.26 54.04 3321870 4.29 

 

0.00 3.02 

3 MANAN JHAWAR 1057487 4.02 0.78 10574870 13.64 

 

0.00 9.63 

           4 

PRAMOD 
DEOKISAN 

JHAWAR HUF 61740 0.23 0.00 61740 0.08 0.00 -0.15 

5 MOHAN JHAWAR 3802831 14.44 0.00 3802831 4.91 0.00 -9.54 

 

TOTAL 6108895 23.20 6.35 26303311 33.93 3.25 10.73 

            
iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) (Fully Paid Up Equity Shares)      

 

Particulars 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 

Shareholding 
at the end of 

the year 

 No. of Shares 
% of the total shares 

of the Company 

No. 
of 

Share
s  

% of 
total 

Share
s of 
the 

Com
pany 

 

At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase/decrease 

(e.g. Allotment/transfer/bonus/Sweat equity etc.) Annexure  A Attached 

 

At the End of the year - - - 

    

     
3. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 

and ADRs): (Fully Paid Up Equity Shares)  



 
 
 

 
 

32 
 

     
Particulars 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 
Cumulative shareholding during 

the year 

 
No. of 
Shares 

% of the total shares of the Company No. of the Shares  

At the beginning of 
the year - - -  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 

Shareholding during 
the year Annexure  B Attached 

At the End of the 
year - - -  

     

 
 
  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percentage of Total Equity) 
  Category-wise Share Holding  (PARTLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES) 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No.of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year 

No.of Shares held at the end of the year 

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year 

  Demat 
Physi

Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

 

A. Promoters                   

(1) Indian                   
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a) 
Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
d) Bodies 
Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

f) Directors 0 0 0 0.00 34781139 0 34781139 18.72 18.72 

                    
Sub Total : 
A(1) 0 0 0 0.00 34781139 0 34781139 18.72 18.72 

                    

(2) Foreign                   
a) NRI - 
Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
b) Other - 
Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
c) Bodies 
Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

                    
Sub Total : 
A(2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

                    
Total 
Shareholding 
of Promoters 
(A)=(A)(1) + 
(A)(2) 0 0 0 0.00 34781139 0 34781139 18.72 18.72 

                    
B. Public 
Shareholding                   

(1) Institutions                   

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

c) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
e) Venture 
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
f) Insurance 
Companies 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
h) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
i) Any Other 
(Specify)                   
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Sub Total : 
B(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

                    
(2) Non - 
Institutions                   
a) Bodies 
Corporates                   

ai) Indian 6937880 0 6937880 2.93 4782778 0 4782778 2.57 -0.35 

aii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Individuals                   
bi) Individual 
Shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs. 1 Lakh 4393302 0 4393302 1.85 1867834 0 1867834 1.01 -0.85 
bii) Individual 
Shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 1 
Lakh 214589748 0 214589748 90.55 143328063 0 143328063 77.14 -13.41 
c) Any Other 
(Specify)                   
c-1) Hindu 
Undivided 
Family (Huf) 11049050 0 11049050 4.66 1018100 0 1018100 0.55 -4.11 
c-2) Non 
Resident Indians 
(Individuals) 9000 0 9000 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
c-3) Clearing 
Member 0 0 0 0.00 16217 0 16217 0.01 0.01 

                    
Sub Total : 
B(2) 236978980 0 236978980 100.00 151012992 0 151012992 81.28 -18.72 

                    
Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1) + 
(B)(2) 236978980 0 236978980 100.00 151012992 0 151012992 81.28 -18.72 

                    
C. Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs                   
a) Promoter & 
Promoter Group 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

b) Public 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
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Sub Total : 
(C)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

                    
Total 
Shareholding 
of Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs 
&ADRs 
(C)=(C)(1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

                    
Grand Total (A 
+ B + C) 236978980 0 236978980 100.00 185794131 0 185794131 100.00 0.00 

          
Shareholding of Promoters (PARTLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES) 
 

Sl 
No. 

Sharehol
der’s 
Name 

No.of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

No.of Shares held at the end of the 
year 

% Change 
during the 

year 

N
o. 
of 
S
h
ar
es 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

compan
y 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total shares 

 

1 

MOHAN 
JHAWA
R 0 0.00 0.00 34781139 18.72 0.00 18.72 

  TOTAL 0 0.00 0.00 34781139 18.72 0.00 18.72 

 
Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change) PARTLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES 

Sl 
No. 

  

    

No.of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Name of 
Promoter's 

As On 
Date 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 

company 
 

1 
At the beginning 
of the year 

MOHAN 
JHAWAR 24-09-2022 34781139 14.68 34781139 14.68 

 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters Share     NIL NIL     
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holding during the 
year 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 34781139 18.72 

 

 
Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):  
(PARTLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES)       

Sl 
No. 

For Each of 
the Top 10 

Shareholders 

    

No.of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 

year 

Name of 
Shareholder's 

As On Date No. of Shares 

% of 
total 

shares of 
the 

company 

No. of 
shares 

% of 
total 

shares of 
the 

company 

1 

At the 
beginning of 
the year MOHAN JHAWAR 24-09-2022 34781139 14.68 34781139 14.68 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 34781139 18.72 

                

2 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

SANJAY 
POPATLAL JAIN 24-09-2022 23547256 9.94 23547256 9.94 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 23547256 12.67 

                

3 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

SHASHANK 
PRAVINCHANDRA 
DOSHI 24-09-2022 23547255 9.94 23547255 9.94 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 23547255 12.67 
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4 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

HETAL 
SHASHANK 
DOSHI 24-09-2022 23547255 9.94 23547255 9.94 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 23547255 12.67 

                

5 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

AMRUTLAL 
GORDHANDAS 
THOBHANI 24-09-2022 22000000 9.28 22000000 9.28 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 22000000 11.84 

                

6 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

JIGNESH 
AMRUTLAL 
THOBHANI 24-09-2022 18000000 7.60 18000000 7.60 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 18000000 9.69 

                

7 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

VARSHABEN 
JIGNESHKUMAR 
THOBHANI 24-09-2022 15000000 6.33 15000000 6.33 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 15000000 8.07 

                

8 
At the 
beginning of MANAN JHAWAR 24-09-2022 9517383 4.02 9517383 4.02 
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the year 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year   03/03/2023 -9517383 5.05 0 0.00 

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

                

9 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

MOHAN 
DEOKISHAN 
JHAWAR HUF 24-09-2022 7687350 3.24 7687350 3.24 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year   03/03/2023 -7687350 4.08 0 0.00 

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

                

10 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

PATWA FINLEASE 
LTD. 24-09-2022 0 0.00 0 0.00 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year   16/12/2022 4778898 2.02 4778898 2.02 

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 4778898 2.57 

                

11 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

AMIT CHETRAM 
SABOO 24-09-2022 4000000 1.69 4000000 1.69 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 4000000 2.15 

                

12 

At the 
beginning of 
the year SHLOKE GUPTA . 24-09-2022 4000000 1.69 4000000 1.69 

  
Date wise 
Increase /     NIL NIL     
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Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year 

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 4000000 2.15 

                

13 

At the 
beginning of 
the year MADHU GUPTA 24-09-2022 3000000 1.27 3000000 1.27 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End 
of the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 3000000 1.61 

5.  Indebtedness 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 
Particulars SecuredLoans 

excluding deposits 
     Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year 
Principal Amount 
Interest due but not paid 
Interest accrued but not due 

 

3,77,80,364/-
             - 
             - 

 
 
- 
- 
- 

 
   

- 
- 
- 

 
 

3,77,80,364/- 
             - 
             - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 3,77,80,364/-   3,77,80,364/- 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

- Addition 
- Reduction 

 
85,72,920/-

(28,51,803/-)

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
85,72,920/- 

(28,51,803/-) 

Net Change 57,21,117/-  57,21,117/- 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year 
Principal Amount 
Interest due but not paid 
Interest accrued but not due 

4,35,01,481/-
              - 
              - 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 

4,35,01,481/- 
              - 
              - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 43,501,481/-   43,501,481/- 
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6. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

Sr. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Managing Director/Director Total Amount 

1. Gross salary 

 Salary as per provisions contained in section17 (1) 
of the Income-tax Act,1961 

 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
taxAct,1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary undersection17(3) Income-
taxAct,1961 

31,50,000 31,50,000

 

 

 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL

4. Commission 
as % of profit 
Others, specify… 

NIL NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL

6. Total(A)                             0 0

 Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL

B. Remuneration to other directors: 
Sr. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Total Amount 

 Independent Directors 
Fee for attending board committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Total(1)   

 Other Non- Executive Directors 
Fee for attending board committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Total(2) NIL NIL 

 Total(B)=(1+2) NIL NIL 

 Total Managerial Remuneration NIL NIL 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act   
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD 
Sr.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

  Company Secretary     CFO Total 

1. Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in                      

section17 (1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 

1961. 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 1961. 

 

3,43,824 5,16,000 8,59,824/-

2. Stock Option - - - 

3. Sweat Equity - - - 

4. Commission 
as % of profit 
others, specify… 

- -
 
- 

5. Others, please specify - - - 

6. Total 3,43,824 5,16,000 8,59,824/-

PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OFOFFENCES: 

 
Type Section of the 

companies 
Act 

Brief description Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/Compoundi
ng fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD/NCLT 
/Court] 

Appeal made. 
If any 
(give details) 

A. Company 

Penalty 
Punishment Compounding 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

B. Directors 

Penalty 

Punishment Compounding 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

C. Other Officers In Default 

Penalty 

Punishment Compounding 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 
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Annexure A 

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Sl No. 

  

    

No.of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Name of Promoter's As On Date 
No. of 

Shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares 

% of 
total 
shares of 
the 
company 

 

1 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

MOHAN DEOKISHAN 
JHAWAR HUF . 01-04-2022 854650 3.25 854650 3.25 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters 
Share holding 
during the 
year   10/03/2023 7687350 9.92 8542000 11.02 

  
At the End of 

the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 8542000 11.02 

                

2 

At the 
beginning of 
the year 

PRAMOD DEOKISAN 
JHAWAR HUF 01-04-2022 61740 0.23 61740 0.23 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters 
Share holding 
during the 
year     NIL NIL     

  
At the End of 

the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 61740 0.08 

                

3 

At the 
beginning of 
the year MOHAN JHAWAR 01-04-2022 3802831 14.44 3802831 14.44 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters 
Share holding 
during the 

    NIL NIL     
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year 

  
At the End of 

the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 3802831 4.91 

                

4 

At the 
beginning of 
the year MANISHA JHAWAR 01-04-2022 332187 1.26 332187 1.26 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters 
Share holding 
during the 
year   10/03/2023 2989683 3.86 3321870 4.29 

  
At the End of 

the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 3321870 4.29 

                

5 

At the 
beginning of 
the year MANAN JHAWAR 01-04-2022 1057487 4.02 1057487 4.02 

  

Date wise 
Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters 
Share holding 
during the 
year   10/03/2023 9517383 12.28 10574870 13.64 

  
At the End of 

the year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 10574870 13.64  

Annexure B 

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Sl No. 
For Each of the 

Top 10 
Shareholders 

    

No.of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Name of 
Shareholder's 

As On Date No. of Shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
company 

No. of shares 
% of total 

shares of the 
company 

 

1 
At the beginning of 
the year 

RAJESH 
KUMAR 
SODHANI 01-04-2022 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the   24/02/2023 325085 0.58 325085 0.58 
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year 

      03/03/2023 2174915 3.88 2500000 4.46 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 2500000 3.23 

 

                
 

2 
At the beginning of 
the year 

BHAVIN 
YASHODHAN 
MEHTA 01-04-2022 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the 
year   29/07/2022 100 0.00 100 0.00 

 

      16/09/2022 -100 0.00 0 0.00 
 

      10/02/2023 2464834 4.39 2464834 4.39 
 

      17/02/2023 -66014 0.12 2398820 4.27 
 

      24/02/2023 -1398820 2.49 1000000 1.78 
 

      24/03/2023 400000 0.52 1400000 1.81 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 600000 0.77 2000000 2.58 

 

                
 

3 
At the beginning of 
the year 

SAVITA R 
GULATI 01-04-2022 92356 0.35 92356 0.35 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the 
year   05/08/2022 -90356 0.34 2000 0.01 

 

      16/09/2022 -1990 0.01 10 0.00 
 

      10/02/2023 2100000 3.74 2100010 3.74 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 2100010 2.71 

 

                
 

4 
At the beginning of 
the year 

FREQUENT 
STOCK AND 
SHARES 
PRIVATE 
LIMITE 01-04-2022 95269 0.36 95269 0.36 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the 
year   08/04/2022 -95269 0.36 0 0.00 

 

      06/05/2022 14052 0.05 14052 0.05 
 

      13/05/2022 -7049 0.03 7003 0.03 
 

      20/05/2022 -7003 0.03 0 0.00 
 

      27/05/2022 2800 0.01 2800 0.01 
 

      03/06/2022 14000 0.05 16800 0.06 
 

      10/06/2022 -4000 0.02 12800 0.05 
 

      24/06/2022 -12800 0.05 0 0.00 
 

      08/07/2022 20000 0.08 20000 0.08 
 

      15/07/2022 7278 0.03 27278 0.10 
 

      22/07/2022 13826 0.05 41104 0.16 
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      29/07/2022 450 0.00 41554 0.16 
 

      05/08/2022 -41554 0.16 0 0.00 
 

      19/08/2022 9000 0.03 9000 0.03 
 

      26/08/2022 59282 0.23 68282 0.26 
 

      02/09/2022 37998 0.14 106280 0.40 
 

      09/09/2022 -73549 0.28 32731 0.12 
 

      07/10/2022 11729 0.04 44460 0.17 
 

      14/10/2022 217000 0.82 261460 0.99 
 

      21/10/2022 11804 0.04 273264 1.04 
 

      28/10/2022 27239 0.10 300503 1.14 
 

      04/11/2022 17589 0.07 318092 1.21 
 

      11/11/2022 -27095 0.10 290997 1.11 
 

      02/12/2022 12137 0.05 303134 1.15 
 

      09/12/2022 26463 0.10 329597 1.25 
 

      16/12/2022 242708 0.92 572305 2.17 
 

      23/12/2022 241943 0.92 814248 3.09 
 

      30/12/2022 67914 0.26 882162 3.35 
 

      31/12/2022 199383 0.76 1081545 4.11 
 

      06/01/2023 153952 0.58 1235497 4.69 
 

      13/01/2023 149314 0.57 1384811 5.26 
 

      20/01/2023 -22254 0.08 1362557 5.17 
 

      27/01/2023 16058 0.06 1378615 5.24 
 

      03/02/2023 -65209 0.25 1313406 4.99 
 

      10/02/2023 89936 0.16 1403342 2.50 
 

      24/02/2023 57086 0.10 1460428 2.60 
 

      03/03/2023 -123086 0.22 1337342 2.38 
 

      10/03/2023 68660 0.09 1406002 1.81 
 

      17/03/2023 448676 0.58 1854678 2.39 
 

      24/03/2023 1000 0.00 1855678 2.39 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 1855678 2.39 

 

                
 

5 
At the beginning of 
the year 

PATWA 
FINLEASE LTD. 01-04-2022 1200712 4.56 1200712 4.56 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the 
year   19/08/2022 -131666 0.50 1069046 4.06 

 

      26/08/2022 100000 0.38 1169046 4.44 
 

      09/09/2022 -145000 0.55 1024046 3.89 
 

      07/10/2022 -48410 0.18 975636 3.71 
 

      14/10/2022 32684 0.12 1008320 3.83 
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      11/11/2022 -7000 0.03 1001320 3.80 
 

      09/12/2022 -36363 0.14 964957 3.66 
 

      16/12/2022 -350000 1.33 614957 2.34 
 

      06/01/2023 -9942 0.04 605015 2.30 
 

      13/01/2023 -44852 0.17 560163 2.13 
 

      20/01/2023 -223891 0.85 336272 1.28 
 

      27/01/2023 120411 0.46 456683 1.73 
 

      03/02/2023 34589 0.13 491272 1.87 
 

      24/02/2023 230000 0.41 721272 1.29 
 

      03/03/2023 -100000 0.18 621272 1.11 
 

      10/03/2023 142000 0.18 763272 0.98 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 -500 0.00 762772 0.98 

 

                
 

6 
At the beginning of 
the year 

TIRUVEEDHUL
A VANI 01-04-2022 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the 
year   27/05/2022 71282 0.27 71282 0.27 

 

      10/06/2022 40616 0.15 111898 0.42 
 

      17/06/2022 147713 0.56 259611 0.99 
 

      05/08/2022 -90000 0.34 169611 0.64 
 

      10/02/2023 945000 1.68 1114611 1.99 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 1114611 1.44 

 

                
 

7 
At the beginning of 
the year 

GLASTON 
MARIO 
MENEZES 01-04-2022 6116 0.02 6116 0.02 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   08/04/2022 3752 0.01 9868 0.04 

 

      05/08/2022 -1868 0.01 8000 0.03 
 

      19/08/2022 -2420 0.01 5580 0.02 
 

      09/09/2022 -5580 0.02 0 0.00 
 

      10/02/2023 1000000 1.78 1000000 1.78 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 1000000 1.29 

 

                
 

8 
At the beginning of 
the year 

SURESHCHAND
RA SHAHRA 01-04-2022 826500 3.14 826500 3.14 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year     NIL NIL     

 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 826500 1.07 
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9 
At the beginning of 
the year 

INDRA 
CHAUHAN 01-04-2022 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   27/05/2022 76000 0.29 76000 0.29 

 

      05/08/2022 -1140 0.00 74860 0.28 
 

      09/12/2022 -74860 0.28 0 0.00 
 

      10/02/2023 673740 1.20 673740 1.20 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 673740 0.87 

 

                
 

10 
At the beginning of 
the year 

MOHAN 
TRADECOM 
COMPANY PVT 
LTD 01-04-2022 123631 0.47 123631 0.47 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   09/09/2022 -123631 0.47 0 0.00 

 

      10/02/2023 600000 1.07 600000 1.07 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 600000 0.77 

 

11 
At the beginning of 
the year 

SAROJ DEVI 
CHHABRA 01-04-2022 487470 1.85 487470 1.85 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share 
holding during the 
year   13/05/2022 -50000 0.19 437470 1.66 

 

      24/02/2023 -437470 0.78 0 0.00 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

12 
At the beginning of 
the year 

UTKARSH 
TRIVEDI 01-04-2022 477734 1.81 477734 1.81 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   08/04/2022 -571 0.00 477163 1.81 

 

      15/04/2022 -7190 0.03 469973 1.78 
 

      22/04/2022 -4647 0.02 465326 1.77 
 

      29/04/2022 1350 0.01 466676 1.77 
 

      20/05/2022 -466676 1.77 0 0.00 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

13 
At the beginning of 
the year 

KESHAV 
KUMAR 
NACHANI 01-04-2022 375000 1.42 375000 1.42 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year     NIL NIL     

 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 375000 0.48 

 

                
 

14 
At the beginning of 
the year 

KAMAL 
NACHANI 01-04-2022 375000 1.42 375000 1.42 

 

  
Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share   23/12/2022 -375000 1.42 0 0.00 
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holding during the 
year 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

15 
At the beginning of 
the year 

RAMESHWAR 
PATEL 01-04-2022 343000 1.30 343000 1.30 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   07/10/2022 -343000 1.30 0 0.00 

 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

16 
At the beginning of 
the year 

NEWGEN 
INTERNATIONA
L PRIVATE 
LIMITED 01-04-2022 310418 1.18 310418 1.18 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year     NIL NIL     

 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 310418 0.40 

 

17 
At the beginning of 
the year RENU NACHANI 01-04-2022 255000 0.97 255000 0.97 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   30/12/2022 -189029 0.72 65971 0.25 

 

      06/01/2023 -65971 0.25 0 0.00 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

18 
At the beginning of 
the year ANITA JAIN 01-04-2022 250000 0.95 250000 0.95 

 

  

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Shareholding during 
the year   27/05/2022 -140082 0.53 109918 0.42 

 

      03/06/2022 -109918 0.42 0 0.00 
 

  
At the End of the 
year   31/03/2023 0 0.00 0 0.00 

 

 
 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

KCL Infra Projects Limited 
 
 
 
 

  Sd/-                                             Sd/-                           
 

Date: August 14, 2023             Mohan Jhawar    Rahul Khande 
Place: Thane                                      Managing Director                          Director 

                           DIN: 00495473     DIN:08095192                                                                                 
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          Annexure ‘3’ 
FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 
 
To, 
The Members, 
KCL Infra Projects Limited 
(CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630) 
B-3/204, Saket Complex  
Thane (West), Thane (M.H.)  
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by KCL Infra Projects Limited (CIN:L45201MH1995PLC167630) (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon. 
 
Management’s Responsibility: 
The Management of the Company is completely responsible for preparation and maintenance of Secretarial records and for 
developing proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with 
respect to secretarial compliances, on the basis of verification done by us on test basis.  
 
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of our understanding to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Wherever required we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of the laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events, etc. 
 
Our report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness or accuracy with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 
 
Based on the information and/or details received on verification  of  the  Company’s  books,  papers,  minute  books,  forms  and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, generallycomplied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed (within / beyond the due date) and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, according to the provisions of: 

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

2) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and rule made there under.  
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3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period) 

5) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz:  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009. 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 
i) The Secretarial Standard on Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and 

 
ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited. 
 
6) As per the Information given by the Management, other laws which are applicable to the Company are: 

 
 General Clause Act, 1897 
 Registration Act, 1908 
 Indian Stamp Act, 1899 
 Limitation Act, 1963 
 Transfer of Property Act, 1882 
 The Indian Contract Act, 1872 
 Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 
 Sale of Goods Act, 1930 
 Information Technology Act, 2000 
 Consumer Protection Act, 1986 
 Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 
 Employee Provident Fund (EPF) & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
 The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
 The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
 The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
 The Income Tax Act, 1961 
 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 
 Trade Union Act, 1926 
 Goods and Services Tax,  
 Housing Board Act, 1965 
 Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Services) Act, 1996 
 

We further report that the compliances of applicable financial and tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have 
been subject to review by Statutory Auditor and Internal Auditor of the Company and other designated professionals.  
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During the period under review, the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc., which are applicable on the company. 
 
During the audit period, provisions of the following Acts, Rules and Regulations were not applicable to the Company; 
 

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014; 
2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 
3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2016; 
4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) 

Regulations, 2013; and 
5. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018. 

 

We further report that based on the information, representation and reports provided by the Company, its Board of Directors, its 
designated Officers, and authorized representatives during the conduct of audit, in our opinion, adequate systems and processes and 
control mechanism exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules and Regulations and 
happening of events etc. to the Company and that the compliance of other laws as listed in Point No. 6 above are based on 
Management Certification.  
 
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors.  
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes, 
as represented by the Management. 
 
We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
We have relied on the information supplied and representation made by the Company and its officers for systems and mechanism 
followed by the Company for compliance under the applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company. 

 

 

For Vishakha Agrawal & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries   
 
 
  
 
Date: 14.08.2023      CS Vishakha Agrawal 
Place: Indore       CP: 15088, ACS: 39298 
        UDIN: A039298E000803479 
 
 
 
Thisreportistobereadwithour letterofevendatewhichisannexedasAnnexureAand forms anintegral partof thisreport. 
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Annexure ‘A’ 
To, 
The Members, 
KCL Infra Projects Limited 
(CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630) 
B-3/204, Saket Complex  
Thane (West), Thane (M.H.)  

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these secretarial records based onour audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as we reappropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.Theverification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records.Webelievethat the processes and practices,we followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure son test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 
 
 

 For Vishakha Agrawal & Associates 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

 
 
 

Date: August 14,2023                       CS Vishakha Agrawal 
Place: Indore                                                              CP: 15088, ACS: 39298 

       UDIN: A039298E000803479 
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Annexure – 4 

POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 

 Introduction: 

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) of KCL Infra Projects Limited (“KCL”or“Company”) is formulated under the 
provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and under regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015 as amended from time to time.(“Listing Regulations”). 

The policy is intended to set out the criteria to pay remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Directors and other 
Senior Management officials and other employees of the company on a fair and equitable basis without any discrimination on any 
grounds and to harmonise and sync the aspirations of Human Resources with the goals of the Company. 

Objective and Purpose: 

The objectives and purpose of this Policy are: 

i. To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and independence for appointment of a 
director (executive/non-executive/ independent) of the Company; 

ii. To recommend policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, KMP and Senior Management to the Board of Directors of the 
Company (“Board”). 

iii. To lay down the policies and procedures for the annual performance evaluation of the directors individually (including 
executive/non-executive/independent) and also of the Board of Directors as a whole and also including committees. 

Definition: 

a) 'Board 'means Board of Directors of the Company. 
b) 'Directors' mean directors of the Company. 
c) 'Committee' means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by the Board, in 

accordance with the Act and applicable Listing Regulations. 
d) 'Company' means KCL Infra Projects Limited. 
e) 'Independent Director' means a Director referred to in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules  framed thereunder. 
f) 'Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)'means 

 the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or manager 
 Whole-time Director 
 the Company Secretary; 
 the Chief Financial Officer; and 
 Any other person as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time. 

g) Senior Management means officers/personnel of the Company who are members of its core management team. The core 
management team includes Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director, Chief Operating Officer &Whole-time Director, 
Presidents, Group General Counsel, Head-HRD, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. 

h) 'Remuneration' means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes 
perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961. 
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Unless the context to the wise requires, words and expressions used in this Policy and not defined herein but defined in the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning respectively assigned 
to the therein. 

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Composition of Committee: 

S.No. Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 

2. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

Matters to be dealt with by the Committee 

The following matters shall be dealt with by the committee: 

  To periodically reviewing the size and composition of the Board to have an appropriate mix of executive and independent Directors 
to maintain its independence and separate its functions of governance and management and to ensure that it is structured to make 
appropriate decisions, with a variety of perspectives and skills, in the best interests of the Company; 

  To formulate the criteria determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend candidates 
to the Board when circumstances warrant the appointment of a new Director, having regard to qualifications, integrity, expertise 
and experience for the position. 

  Establishing and reviewing Board KMP and Senior Management succession plans in order to ensure and maintain an appropriate 
balance of skills, experience and expertise on the Board and Senior Management. 

  Evaluation of performance: 

 Make recommendations to the Board on appropriate performance criteria for the Directors. 
 Formulate the criteria and framework for evaluation of performance for every Director on the Board of the Company or engage 

with a third party facilitator in doing so. 
 Identify ongoing training and education programs for the Board to ensure that Non-Executive Directors are provided with 

adequate information regarding the business, the industry and their legal responsibilities and duties. Meeting of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee 

  The nomination and remuneration committee shall meet atleast once in a financial year. 
  The quorum for the meeting shall bee it her two members or one third of the members of the committee, whichever is greater, 

including atleast one independent director. 

         Policy for appointment and removal of Directors, KMP and Senior Management 

  The Committee shall ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person identified for appointment as 
Director, KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his/her appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide 
whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/satisfactory for the position. 

  A person to be appointed as Director, KMP or Senior Management should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience 
for the position he / she is considered for. 

  A person, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, deep expertise and insights in sectors / 
areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company's growth and complementary skills in relation to the other 
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Board members. 
  The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director / executive Director who has 

attained the age of sixty years and shall not appoint Independent Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that 
the term of the person holding this position may be extended at the discretion of the committee beyond the age of sixty 
years/seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed 
to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond sixty years/seventy years as the case 
maybe. 

  A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold office in more than one company except in its subsidiary company at the same 
time. However, a whole-time KMP can be appointed as a Director in any company, with the permission of the Board of Directors 
of the Company. 

Term / Tenure 

  Managing Director / Whole-time Director: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director and 
CEO or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re- appointment shall be made earlier than one year 
before the expiry of term. 

  Independent Director: An Independent Director shall hold office for a term upto five consecutive years on the Board of the 
Company and will be eligible for re- appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board's report. No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such 
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the 
Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be 
ensured that number of Boards on which such Independent Director serves, is restricted to applicable regulations in force. 

Removal 

  Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made there under or under any other 
applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a 
Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

Retirement 

  The Directors, KMP and Senior Management shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Directors, KMP and Senior Management in the 
same position / remuneration or otherwise, even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. Policy relating to 
the remuneration for Directors, KMP and Senior Management. 

Remuneration to Independent Directors: 

  Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way of 

 Sitting fees for participation in the Board and other meetings; 
 Reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board and other meetings; 
 Commission as approved by the Shareholders of the Company. 

  Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board may decide the sitting fee payable to Independent Directors, but the amount of such sitting 
fees shall not exceed the maximum permissible under the Companies Act,2013. 
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Remuneration to Directors in other capacity: 

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to be paid to Directors will be determined by the Committee and recommended 
to the Board for approval. 

  The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder. 

  Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation structure may be recommended by the Committee to the Board which should 
be within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managing Director/ Whole-time Director. 

  Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors, KMP and Senior Management for indemnifying them 
against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such 
personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the 
remuneration. 

Remuneration to other employees: 

  Apart from the Directors, KMPs and Senior Management, the remuneration for rest of the employees is determined on the basis 
of the role and position of the individual employee including professional experience, responsibility, job complexity and local 
market conditions. 

  The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate and reasonable compensation to the staff. 
The Key Managerial Personnel/shall ensure that the level of remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who perform 
according to set expectations for the individual in question. 

  The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances, perquisites etc. may become bined to ensure an appropriate and 
balanced remuneration package. 

  The annual increments to the remuneration paid to the employees shall be determined based on the annual appraisal carried out by 
the HODs of various departments. Decision son Annual Increments shall be made on the basis of this annual appraisal. 

  Minimum remuneration to Whole-time Directors If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, 
the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Directors in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the 
CompaniesAct,2013. 

Remuneration to KMPs and Senior Management: 

  Remuneration to KMP and Senior Management The pay program for KMP and Senior Management has been designed around 
three primary pay components: Base/Fixed Pay, Performance Bonus and Stock Incentives. The set here components together 
constitute the “Total Rewards” of the KMP and Senior Management. 

Policy Review 

  This Policy is framed based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under and the requirements of Listing 
Regulations with the Stock Exchanges. 

  In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any other regulations which makes any of the 
provisions in the policy inconsistent with the Act or regulations, then the provisions of the Act or regulations would prevail over 
the policy and the provisions in the policy would be modified in due course to make it consistent with law. 

  This policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee as and when any changes are to be incorporated in 
the policy due to change in regulations or as may be felt appropriate by the Committee. Any changes or modification to the policy 
as recommended by the Committee would be placed before the Board of Directors for their approval. 
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Information Pursuant to Section 197(12) Of the Companies Act, 2013 Read With Rule 5 (1) Of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

(1) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year ended 

31
st
March,2023: 

 

Name of the Directors Ratio of Director's Remuneration to the median remuneration of the 
employees of the Company for the Financial Year 

Mohan Jhawar* 6.48:1 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year: 

Name of the Directors/KMP Percentage increase in Remuneration in the Financial Year 

Mohan Jhawar 100.0 % 

Sunny Khande 2.99 % 

Shivani Gupta 66.7% 

(2) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on March 31,2023 is 10 
(3) Average percentile increase/decrease already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase/decrease in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

There is Increase in Managerial Remuneration for the financial year 2022-23 OF 100%. (Manaing director Mr Mohan Jhawar has 

not taken salary from 1april 2020 to 30 sept 2022 Due to severe effect on company financials due to Covid19 Pandemic due to that 

there is increase of 100 % in remuneration)  

 Salary has been taken as actual to make the figures comparable. 

(4) There is no variable component of remuneration which was availed by company to directors. 
(5) Remunerations as per the remuneration policy of the company. 
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Annexure – 5 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

Industry Structure and Developments 

Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy. The sector is highly responsible for propelling India’s overall 
development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initiating policies that would ensure time-bound creation of world 
class infrastructure in the country. Infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, and urban infrastructure 
development.India plans to spend US$ 1.4 trillion on infrastructure through ‘National Infrastructure Pipeline’ in the next five years. 
In FY21, infrastructure activities accounted for 13% share of the total FDI inflows of US$ 81.72 billion. India will need to 
construct 43,000 houses every day until 2023 to achieve the vision of Housing for All by 2023.  

Hundreds of new cities need to be developed over the next decade. Over the next 10 years, demand for urban freight is predicted to 
increase by 140%. Final-mile freight transit in Indian cities accounts for 50% of the total logistics expenditures in the country's 
increasing e-commerce supply chains. India is expected to become the third-largest construction market globally by 2023. 

As India is developing country, with a rapidly growing urban population, the problems relating to vehicle parking have become 
common these days and the number of vehicles is also increasing daily adding to the parking vows at public places. The traffic on 
roads and parking space has been an area of concern in majority of the Indian cities. Multi-level car parking system (MLCPS) is 
one such technology which has been implemented in India and is the core operational area for KCL Infra Projects Limited. It is 
used for optimum utilization of parking space by utilizing vertical space rather than horizontal space. 

In automated multilevel car parking, the car is lifted and placed at the available slot. This is done with the help of robotics and a lot 
of software programming. Some of the benefits of MLCPS are optimum utilization of space, low construction cost, low working 
and maintenance cost to name a few. 

Opportunities 

Mechanized car parking systems are in itself something unique and interesting that has been introduced and implemented in India, 
but there is always a scope for improvement. New technologies can be implemented in order to boost the currents scenario viz. 
Smart parking can be one of the options which uses sensors, wireless communication technology, data analytic sect. To solve 
parking issues. 

Smart parking solutions can be used to locate available parking space with the help of sensors. This saves customer's time as well 
as minimizes wastage of fuel. Various technologies are being used to ease parking problems in public places. 

Not just the technologies, but government of India is also giving huge impetus for the development of this sector through focused 
policies such as open FDI Norms, large budget allocation to infrastructure sectors, smart city missions, RERA etc. Can be seen as 
major opportunities in this sector. 
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Threats 

Opportunities are many, but at the same time the threats can- not be overlooked. The first and the foremost is the risk associated 
with the tender allocation process as the construction and infrastructure sector in India is largely dominated by a large 
number of small players. The lack of co-ordination in various government authorities also causes delay in the execution and 
implementation of the projects. Huge cost involvement and difficulty in raising funds are some of the major threats. 

Risk and concerns 

Risk is an inherent part of any business, and so is the case with this industry too. There are various risks associated while 
undertaking any construction projects which have to be mitigated and taken due care of. The first is the contractual risk, shortage of 
skilled labor, availability and inducement of funds as and when required, regulatory amendments, cost volatility, competitive 
intensity, etc. 

Not just the mere existence of risk but their identification, analysis and mitigation in an effective manner is the major area of 
concern for the company and forth is the company has a risk management committee in place and also a policy to manage the risks 
encountered or the potential ones in a planned way. 

The company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its 
operations. These are routinely tested and certified by statutory as well as internal auditors and cover all offices, factories and key 
business areas. Significant audit observations and follow up actions there on are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control environment and monitors the 
implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the company's risk management policies 
and systems. 

Outlook 

The company's approach is more focused towards constant and rapid upgradation of the infrastructure and development of more 
and more mechanized car parking projects particularly in the smart cities of India.Our company is India one of the leading 
Company in the field of technology, engineering and Construction Company has multiple operating segments under the roof of 
KCL World. Looking at the current global scenario Company has diversified its business object in healthcare sector. 

Internal Control Mechanism 

The company has adequate internal control systems in place, commensurate with its size and nature of operations. The Internal 
auditor, inter-alia, covers all significant areas of the company's operations and submits the report to the Audit Committee for the 
review. 

Internal control procedures at KCL Infra projects Limited are designed to ensure that all assets and resources are acquired 
economically, used efficiently and protected adequately and all internal policies and statutory guidelines are compliedinletter and 
spirit. 

The company's Audit Committee, the composition and functioning of which is in accordance with the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 as well as Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, further 
strengthens the robustness of its internal control mechanism. 
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Human resource Development 

Your Company recognizes human assets as a primary source of its growth & competitiveness. Company's HR practices, systems 
and people development initiatives are focused on deployment and scouting for the “Best Fit” talent for all key roles. Pay for 
performance, reward and recognition programmes, job enrichment and lateral movements provide opportunity for growth & 
development of the talent pool. 

The Company has been working towards institutionalizing a performance-oriented culture. The entire HR system including 
recruitment, performance management system, reward and recognition has been aligned with the business objectives. Key 
management personnel at the projects are being valuated on uniform parameters linked to organisational priorities. Similarly, 
key personnel at the corporate office have been given organisation target in addition to their functional objectives. The Company 
also has association with various professionals who work in association and co-ordination with the employees of the Company. 

Cautionary Statements 

The above Management Discussion and Analysis contains certain forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable 
security laws and regulations. These pertain to the Company's future business prospects and business profitability, which are 
subject to a number of risks and uncertainties and the actual results could materially differ from those in such forward looking 
statements. The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include, but are not limited to, risks and uncertainties, regarding 
fluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth, competition, economic growth in India, ability to attract and retain highly 
skilled professionals, time and cost over runs on contracts, government policies and actions with respect to investments, fiscal 
deficits, regulation, etc. In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, shareholders and readers are cautioned that in the case of data and information external to the Company, no representation is 
made on its accuracy or comprehensiveness though the same are based on sources thought to be reliable. The Company does not 
undertake to make any announcement in case any of these forward looking statements become materially incorrect in future or 
update any forward looking statements made from time to time on behalf of the Company. 
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Annexure – 6 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In accordance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and some 
of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate Governance, the report containing the details of corporate 
governance systems and processes at KCL Infra Projects Limited is as under: - 

1. INTRODUCTION: 

Corporate Governance is about working ethically and finding a balance between economic and social goals. It includes the 
ability to function profitably and simultaneously obeying laws, rules and regulations. Corporate Governance is about 
maximizing shareholder value legally, ethically and on a sustainable basis while ensuring fairness to every shareholder, 
Company's clients, employees, investors, vendor partners, government of the land and the community. Thus corporate 
governance is the reflection of Company's culture, policies and its relationship with the stakeholders and its commitment 
to values. 

2. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 

KCL Infra Projects Limited looks upon good Corporate Governance practices as a key driver of sustainable corporate growth 
and long-term stakeholder value creation. It is the application of best management practices, compliance of laws & 
adherence to ethical standards to achieve the Company's objective of enhancing stakeholders' value and discharge of 
social responsibility. Good Corporate Governance Practices enable a Company to attract high quality financial and human 
capital. In turn these resources are leveraged to maximize long-term stakeholder value while preserving the interest of 
multiple stakeholders including the society at large. In the conduct of your Company's business and its dealings, it abides by 
the principle of honesty, openness and doing what is right which means taking business decisions and acting in way that is 
ethical and is in compliances with the applicable legislation. The Company's corporate governance philosophy has been 
further strengthened through the KCL Infra Projects Ltd. Code of Conduct for Board and Senior personnel and policy on 
Insider trading. 

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, direction and 
performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and duties. The Board of Directors of the 
Company is headed by Mr. Mohan Jhawar, Chairman cum Managing Director. 

A. COMPOSITION: 

The Company's policy is to maintain optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors as required under applicable legislation. As on date of this Report, Your Company’s Board comprises of Six 
Directors, out of them three are Non-Executive Independent Directors, one is a Non-Executive Director, one is a 
Professional Executive Director, and one is Promoter Executive Director. The Executive Directors includes Managing 
Director and Chief Financial Officer. The composition of the Board is in conformity with the requirements of Regulation 17 
of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. Independent Directors are non-executive 
directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 
2015, The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”). All the 
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Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16 and Section 149(6) of 
the Act. 

None of the Director on the Board is member of more than ten committees or the Chairman of more than five committees 
(committees being Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee), as per requirements of Regulation 26(1) 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, across all the public limited companies in 
which he/she is a Director. 

B. BOARD MEETINGS: 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/business policy and strategy apart from other Board 
businesses. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative annual calendar of the Board and Committee 
Meetings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful 
participation in the meetings. During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, Ten Board meetings were held respectively 
on below mentioned dates: 

 May 30,2022 
 July 22,2022 
 August 05,2022 
 August17,2022 
 September 15,2022 
 November 14,2022 
 December 09,2022 
 January 24,2023 
 February13,2023 
 February 27,2023 

The maximum interval between any two meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days. The notice of 
Board meeting along with agenda was given well in advance to all the Directors. The meetings of the Board are held either at 
the registered office of the Company at Thane or at the Corporate Office of the Company at Indore. 

The names and categories of the directors on the board, their attendance at board meetings held during the year and the 
number of directorships and committee chairmanships / memberships held by them in other public companies as on March 
31,2023 are given herein above. Other directorships do not include directorships of private limited companies, Section 8 
companies and of companies incorporated outside India. Chairmanships/ memberships of board committees shall include 
only Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Risk Management 
Committee & the Management Committee. 

C. SEPARATE MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

According to the provisions of Regulation 25(2) of SEBI (List ing Obligation and Disc losure Requirements) 
Regulation 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance 
of non-Independent Directors and members of the management. All the Independent Directors of the Company shall strive to 
be present at such meeting. The Independent Directors met one time during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 on 
February 27,2023 and inter alia discussed the following: - 

1. Reviewing the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 
2. Reviewing the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive directors and 

non-executive directors; 
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3. Assessing the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that 
is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

D. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

In Compliance of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 Company has conducted a 
familiarization programme for Independent Directors of the Company for familiarizing with their roles, rights, 
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. 
The details of such familiarization programmes for Independent Directors are posted on the website of the Company and can 
be accessed at www.kclinfra.com. 

E. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted to deal with 
specific areas/activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees are setup under the 
formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the 
Board, as a part of good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees 
and is responsible for their action. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. 
The Board Committees can request special invites to join the meeting, as appropriate. The Board has currently established 
the following statutory and non-statutory Committees. 

F. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Company has constituted the qualified Audit Committee of the Company pursuant to the provision of Regulation 18 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.TheAudit Committee acts as a link between the 
Management, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors; and oversees the financial reporting process. It 
interacts with statutory, internal auditors and reviews and recommends their appointment and remuneration. The Audit 
Committee is provided with necessary assistance and information so as to enable it to carry out its function effectively. 

i. Composition of Audit Committee 

The Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 
of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. All the members of the Committee have 
relevant experience in financial matters.  

 
S. No. Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Mr. Archit Yadav  Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 

2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
3. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Member 

4. Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

ii. Meeting of Audit Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, Six Audit Committee Meetings were held as below: 
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 May 30,2022 
 July 22,2022 
 August 05,2022 
 September 15,2022 
 November 14,2022 
 February 13,2023 

The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. 

iii. Powers of Audit Committee 

The power of audit committee shall include the following: -   

1. Investigating any activity within its terms of reference; 
2. Seeking information from any employee; 
3. Obtaining outside legal or other professional advice; 
4. Securing attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and 
5. Any other matter as may be required from time to time by the Listing Agreement, Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended to by such committee. 
  

iv. Role of Audit Committee 

The role of audit committee shall include the following: - 

1. Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommending to the board for appointment (including re-appointment and replacement), remuneration and terms of 
appointment of auditor of the Company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual Financial Statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the 

board for approval, with particular reference to: - 

 Matters required being included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms 
of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same 
 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management 
 Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings 
 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to Financial Statements 
 Disclosure of any related party transactions 
 Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing with management, the quarterly Financial Statements before submission for board for approval; 
6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 

issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a 
public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties; 
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
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10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; Evaluation of internal financial 
controls and Risk Management systems; 

 

11. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control 
systems; 

12. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

13. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 
14. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or 

irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 
15. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 

discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
16. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case 

of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 
17. Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism in case same is existing; 
18. Overseeing the performance of Company's Risk Management Policy; 
19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or 

discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 
21. Any other function as may be required from time to time by the Listing Regulation, Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended to by such committee. 

v. Information to be reviewed by Audit Committee: 

The audit committee shall review the following: 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management; 
3. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 
4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; 
5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor; and 
6. Any other matter as may be required from time to time by the Listing Regulation, Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended to by such committee. 
 
 

II. N O M I N A T I O N  A N D  R E M U N E R A T I O N  COMMITTEE: 

Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company pursuant to the provisions of 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 and pursuant to Section 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules2014. 

i. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of 
Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015. All the members of the 
Committee have relevant experience in financial matters. 
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Composition of Committee: 

 

S.No. Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 

2. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

i. Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023, Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting were held 2 Times. 
Which were as follows: 

 August 04,2022 
 February 25,2023 

 
ii. Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall include the following: - 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees; 

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board; 
3. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed as senior management in accordance 

with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board for their appointment and removal. 
5. Any other function as may be required from time to time by the Listing Regulation, Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

there under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended by such committee. 

iii. Remuneration Policy: 

The Company has adopted the Policy for Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other 
Employees of the Company The detailed policy is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at 
www.kclinfra.com and annexed as Annexure III in the Annual Report. 

iv. Remuneration of Directors: 

Remuneration of Executive Directors is decided by the Board, based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as per the remuneration policy of the Company, within the ceilings fixed by the shareholders. 

v. Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: During the year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company has not paid any 
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remuneration either in the form of commission or sitting fee to its non-executive Directors. 

 

III. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Company had a shareholder’s / investors grievance Committee of directors look into the redressal of complaints of 
investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend/ notices/ Annual Reports, etc. the nomenclature of the 
said Committee was changed to Stakeholders’ relationship Committee in the light of provisions of the Act and Regulation 20 
of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.  

i. Composition of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

The composition of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is given below:  

 
S.No. Name of Director Category Designation 
1. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Chairman 

2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
3. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Member 

4. Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

ii. Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31
st
March, 2023 no investor complaints were received and no complaint was pending for 

redressal. The Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meeting were held 3 times in a year. The necessary quorum was 
present for the meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee during the Financial Year under review. Which were as 
follows: 

 June 20,2022 
 September16,2022 
 March 05,2023 

iii. Role of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

The roles of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee shall include all the function/s as may be required from time to time by 
the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 
under and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements by such committee. 

a. The Committee meets regularly for redressing shareholders'/investors' complaints like non-receipt of Balance Sheet transfer 
of shares, etc. The Committee oversees the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agents and recommends measures 
for overall improvement in the quality of investor services. The Board of Directors has delegated power for approving 
transfer of securities to Directors. The Committee focuses primarily on strengthening investor relations and ensuring rapid 
resolution of any shareholder or investor concerns. The Committee also monitors implementation and compliance of the 
Company's code of conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading in pursuance of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
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Regulations, 2015. 
b. The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions and grievances expeditiously and replies have been sent/issues resolved 

usually within 15days, except in case of dispute over facts or other legal constraints. 
c. The Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee reviews the complaints received and action taken. 
d. No requests for share transfers are pending except those that are disputed or sub-judice. 

IV. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

The Company had a Risk Management Committee of directors for framing, implementing and monitoring the Risk 
Management plan for the Company and such other functions as it may deem fit. 

i. Composition of Risk Management Committee 

 
S.No. Name of Director Category Designation 
1. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Chairman 

2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 
3. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

4. Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

ii. Meeting of Risk Management Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March,2023. Two meeting was held of Risk Management Committee 2023.Which are 
as follows: 

 January 12,2023 
 March 25,2023  

iii. Role of Risk Management Committee 

The role of Risk Management Committees shall includes all functions as may be required from time to time by the 
SEBI(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
thereunder and any other statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended to by such committee. 

V. MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: - 

The committee acts for safeguarding the company and the stakeholders' interest. 

i. Meeting of Management Committee 

During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023. During the year under review, one meeting of the Management 
committee was held on February 07, 2023. 

S.No. Name of Director Category Designation 

1. Mr. Mohan Jhawar Managing Director Chairman 
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2. Ms. Sunita Vora Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

3. Mr. Archit Yadav Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

4. Mr. MoeenuddinMakrani Non-Executive Independent Director Member 

 Investor Correspondence (Details of Compliance Officer): 

For any assistance regarding dematerialization of share transfer, transmissions, change of address or any query relating to 
shares of company please write to: - 

Company Secretary & Compliance officer 

KCL Infra Projects Limited” KCL Business Park, 3rd floor, 46-47 PU-4, Commercial Behind C-21 Mall A.B. Road Indore 
(M.P.)- 452010 

E-Mail Id exclusively for Investor's Grievances: cs@kclinfra.com. 

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
i. Annual General Meetings: - 

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held at the venue and time as under: - 

 
 

YEAR 

 

AGM 
No. 

 

DATE 

 

TIME 

 

VENUE 

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 
PASSED 

2021-22 27th 27.09.2022 12:30 PM Video Conferencing/ Other 
AudioVisual Mode 

Yes* 

2020-21 26th 30.11.2021 11:00 AM Video Conferencing/ Other 
Audio Visual Mode 

Yes* 

 

2019-20 

 

  25th 

 

 30.09.2020 

 

  11.00 AM 

 

VideoConferencing/ Other Audio 
Visual Mode 

 

Yes* 

 

 
 *The company in its AGM held in previous years has passed the following special resolutions:- 
 

In the year 2021-22 

Re-appointment of Mr. Mohan Jhawar (DIN: 00495473) as the Managing Director of the company in terms of Sections 196, 197 
and 203 read with Schedule V and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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In the year 2020-21  

Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment in Memorandum of Association of the 
Company. The provisions of Section 61 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any 
amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof) and the Rules framed thereunder and applicable provision of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded for increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from existing Rs. 5,50,00,000 (Rupees Five Crores 
Fifty Lakh) divided into  2,75,00,000 (Two Crore Seventy Five Lakh ) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each to Rs. 55,00,00,000( 
Rupees Fifty Five Crore) divided into 27,50,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore Fifty Lakh)  Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each ranking 
pari passu in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company as per the Memorandum and Articles of Association 
of the Company. 

In the year 2019-20 

Increase the FII investment limit under Portfolio Investment Scheme. 

In accordance with the provisions of clause (b) of sub-section 3 of section 6 and section 47 of the Foreign Exchange 
Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) read with Foreign Exchange Management  (Transfer  or  Issue of a  Security  by  a  Person  
resident  Outside India) Regulations, 2017 issued vide  Notification No. FEMA 20(R)/2017-RB dated  November  7,  2017 
or any other applicable law, and subject to the Statutory approval, if required, the consent of the company be and is hereby 
accorded for the investment by Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) in the equity share capital of the Company, either by 
direct investment or by purchase or otherwise by acquiring from the market under portfolio investment scheme on 
repatriation basis, up to limits as decided by the Board of Directors of the company within the limits as provided by 
regulatory authorities. 

5. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

a. There are no materially significant transactions with its promoters, the directors or the senior management personnel, their 
subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company. The disclosure in respect of 
related party transactions is provided in the notes on accounts. All contracts with the related parties entered into during the 
year are in normal course of business and have no potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large and are carried 
out on arm's length basis at fair market value. 

b. Neither was any penalties imposed, nor were any strictures passed by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on 
any capital market related matters during the last three years. 

c. The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest 
standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior. Towards this end, the Company has framed a 
Whistleblower Policy. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The detail Whistleblower policy has 
been u p l o a d e d  on t he  
C o m p a n y ' s w e b s i t e : http://www.kclinfra.com/pdf/VigilMechanismorWhistleBlowerPolicy_KCLIPL.pdf 

d. The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulation. The Company has adopted various 
non-mandatory requirements as well, as discussed under relevant headings. 

e. The Company does not have any subsidiary company. 
f. All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 

& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an 
arm's length pricing basis and do not attract the provisions of Section188 of the Companies Act, 2013. There were no 
materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year, which were in conflict with the interest of the 
Company. Suitable disclosure as required by the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS 24) has been made in the notes to the 



 
 
 

 
 

71 
 

Financial Statements. 

The company has framed Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on Dealing with Related Party 
Transactions and is placed on the Company's website and the web link for the same is www.kclinfra.com. 

g. The Company has also formed Related Party Transactions Policy and the web link for same is 
http://www.kclinfra.com/pdf/PolicyonRelatedPartyTransactions_KCLIPL.pdf 

h. The Company has in place mechanism to inform Board Members about the Risk Management and minimization 
procedures and periodical reviews to ensure that risk is controlled by the executive management. A detailed note on risk 
management is given in the financial review section of the management discussion and analysis report elsewhere in this 
report. Further the company did not engage in commodity hedging activities. 

i. The company has fully complied with the applicable requirement specified in reg.17 to 27 and clause(b)to(i) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

j. Means of Communication: 

  The website of the company acts as primary source of information regarding the operations of the company quarterly, half 
yearly and annual financial results and other media releases are being displayed on the company's website. 

  Quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results approved by the board of directors are submitted to the stock exchange in 

terms of the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing obligations & disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015 
and are published in the following newspapers namely, Financial Express (English) and Mumbai Local Newspaper. 

k. Payment of Listing Fees: 

Annual listing fee for the year 2022-23 has been paid by the Company to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the 
Company are traded. 

6. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

 
I Annual General Meeting: 28

th
Annual General Meeting of the members of KCL INFRA PROJECTS 

LIMITED 

 Day, 
Date, Time 

Saturday 
30th September 2023, 
12:00 PM 

 Venue Video Conferencing Other Audio Visual Mode: 
Topic: 28th Annual General Meeting 
Time: Sep 30, 2023 12:00 PM India 
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II 

 
 
Financial Year 

1st April 2022 - 31st March 2023 Financial Calendar (Tentatively) for Quarterly 
Results 

Q1 (30.06.2022) - on or before August 14, 2022 
Q2 (30.09.2022) - on or before November 14, 2022 
Q3 (31.12.2022) - on or before February 14, 2023 
Q4 (31.03.2023) - on or before May 30, 2023 
(Subject to extension of dates provided by SEBI from time to time) 

III Date of Book Closure 23st September 2023 to 30th September 2023 

IV Dividend Payment Date No Dividend has been recommended for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

V Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001. 

VI Stock Code BSE – 531784 

 ISIN Number INE469F01026 

VII. Market Price Data: 

The following table gives the monthly high and low of Company's share price on the Stock Exchange, Mumbai. 

 

 
Month Company' s Share Price on BSE BSE Sensex 

 Monthly High (In 
Rs.) 

Monthly Low (In Rs.) High Low 

April, 2022 3.48 
 

2.49 
 

60,845.10 56,009.07 

May, 2022 2.6 
 

1.9 
 

57,184.21 52,632.48 

June, 2022 3.37 
 

1.86 
 

56,432.65 50,921.22 

July, 2022 4.03 
 

2.86 
 

57,619.27 52,094.25 

August, 2022 4.89 
 

2.13 
 

60,411.20 57,367.47 

September,2022 4.47 2.7 60,676.12 56,147.23 

October, 2022 3.23 
 

2.68 
 

60,786.70 56,683.40 

November, 2022 2.88 
 

2.48 
 

63,303.01 60,425.47 

December, 2022 2.82 
 

2.64 
 

63,583.07 59,754.10 

January, 2023 4.56 
 

3.42 61,343.96 58,699.20 

February, 2023 3.56 
 

1.85 
 

61,682.25 58,795.97 

March, 2023 1.95 1.63 60,498.48 57,084.91 
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agent: 

Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

17-20, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate, 1st Floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri(E), Mumbai 400059, India. Ph.: 022-
28594060, Fax: 022-28594442 Email: rameshg@adroitcorporate.com, divyan@adroitcorporate.com 

Share Transfer System 

All the transfer received are processed by the Registrars and Transfer Agents and approved by the Board/ Share Transfer 
Committee. 

VIII. Shareholding Details 

A. Shareholding Pattern as on 31
st
March, 2023: 

 Category No. of Shares Held Percentage of Shareholding 

A PROMOTERS HOLDING:   
1. Promoters: 

a. Indian Promoters  
b. Foreign Promoters 

61084450
0.00

23.20%
0.00%

2. Person acting in concert 
 Sub-total (A) 61084450 23.20%
B NON-PROMOTER'SHOLDING:   
1. Institutional Investors   
 a. Mutual Funds and UTI 0.00 0.00%
 b. Banks, Financial Institutions, 

Insurance Companies [Central / 
State Govt. Institutions / 
Non-government Institutions] 
 

29,210 0.04%

 c. FIIs 0.00 0.00%
 d. Sub-total (B) 0.00 0.00%
C OTHERS: 

 
 a. Body Corporate 10688672 4.06
 b. Indian Public 187866505 71.24
 c. NRIs / OCBs 84430 0.11%
 d. Any other 
 clearing Members 25458 0.01%
 HUF 3531275 1.34%
 Sub-total (C) 
 Grand Total (A+B+C) 263310000 100.00%
    

IX. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March,2023    
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No of Equity Shares No. of 
Shareholders 

% of 
shareholders 

No. of Shares % of 
shareholding 

Up to 100 4160 45.82 139617 

 

0.18

101 to 500 1947 21.45 588753 
 

0.76

501 to 1000 889 9.79 771683 
 

1.00

1001 to 2000 610 6.72 954228 
 

1.23

2001 to 3000 302 3.33 781992 
 

1.01

3001 to 4000 127 1.40 456279 
 

0.59

4001 to 5000 185 2.04 895472    
 

1.16

5001 to 10000 331 3.65 2569140 
 

3.31

1,00,01 to 20000 162 1.78 2355644 
 

3.04

20001 to 50000 176 1.94 5949081 
 

7.67

50001&Above 190 2.09 62053980 
 

80.05

X. Dematerialization and Liquidity 

The shares of the Company are traded in dematerialized form under the depository system of the National Securities 
Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). 

Sr. No. Particulars No.of Shareholders No. of Shares Holding % 

1. Held in Dematerialized with CDSL 7490 24,23,98,371 92.06

2. Held in Dematerialized with NSDL 1776 1,96,94,999 7.48

3. Held in Physical 201 1216630 0.46

 Total 9467 263310000 100.00

At present, the company's shares are fully available for trading in the depository systems of both NSDL and CDSL, as on 31st 
March, 2023 99.54% of the total equity share capital exists under the electronic form. Those shareholders, who have still not got 
their shares dematerialized, are advised to do so, as soon as possible, in view of many advantages that exists therein. 

XI. Outstanding ADRs/GDRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments: 

The Company had not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments in the past and hence as on 31st March, 
2023 the Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or convertible instruments.  
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XII. Plant Locations: 

Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure (i.e.Construction and development of properties); therefore, it does not have 
any manufacturing plants. 

XIII. Address for correspondence: 
1. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. 

 17-20, Jafferbhoy Ind. Estate,1st Floor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059, India. 

 Contact No: +91-22- 4227 0400 /2859 6060 / 2859 4060, E-mail : rameshg@adroitcorporate.com, divyan@adroitcorporate.com 
2. KCL Infra Projects Limited 

Registered Office: B-3/204, Saket Complex Thane (West) Maharashtra - 400601 
E-mail: cs@kclinfra.com 
CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630. 
Corporate office: KCL Business Park 

3rdFloor, Plot No. 46-47, PU 4 Commercial Behind C-21 Mall, A.B. Road, Indore Madhya Pradesh 452010. 
XIV. AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

  The Company has obtained a certificate from its statutory auditor’s M/s Scan & Co. (Previously known as M.S.  
Singhatwadia&Co.), Chartered Accountants (Firm Reg. No. 113954W) confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchanges. This Certificate is annexed to the 
Directors' Report for the year 2022-23. This certificate will be sent to the stock exchanges along with the Annual Report to be 
filed by the Company. 

 XV.DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT: 

In confirmation with the Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 the Company has obtained written confirmation 
from the Directors that the company has complied with the Code of conduct applicable to the Company by th 

 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Director 
         KCL Infra Projects Limited 

 
 
 
 

                                                                                       Sd/-                                               Sd/-    
 

Date:  August 14, 2023    Mohan Jhawar   Rahul Khande 
Place: Thane                                     Managing Director              Director 

DIN:00495473      DIN:08095192                       
       

 

  



 
 
 

 
 

76 
 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

[Under regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015] 

 
To, 
The Members 
KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
[CIN: L45201MH1995PLC167630] 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by KCL Infra Projects Limited, for the year ended 
March 31,2023, as stipulate in regulation34(3) read with schedule of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulation,2015. 

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to are 

view of procedures and implementation thereof, by the company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate 

governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and their presentations made by the 

directors and management, we certify that the company has complied with conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the 

SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation,2015. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 
 
 
 

For Scan & Co. 
(Previously known as M.S. Singhatwadia and Co.)  

Chartered Accountant 
FRN: 113954W 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Aman Saluja 

(Partner) 
M. No. 181347 

Place: Indore 
Date: May 30,2023 
UDIN: 23181347BGXVOH1176 
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CFO Certification 

 
Under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 

To, 
The Board of Directors 
KCL Infra Projects Ltd. 

 

1. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31stMarch, 2023 and to the best of my 
knowledge and belief: 

(a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material factor contain statements that might be 
misleading; 

(b) These statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(c) There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violated the listed entity’s code of conduct. 

2. I accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that I have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and 
the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I am aware and the steps I 
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

3. I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee: - 
(a) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
(b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements; and instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement there in, Ifany, of the 
management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over financial reporting; and 

(c) Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over financial reporting. 
 

 Yours Sincerely, 
Sd/- 

 
 

Sunny Khande 
                                   (CFO) 

 
Date: May 30,2023 

 
Place: Thane 

 

 



 

 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
To,  
The Members of KCL Infra Projects Limited 
 
Report on the Audit of theFinancial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanyingFinancial Statements of KCL Infra Projects Limited(“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
ended on that date and Notes to theFinancial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “theFinancial Statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaidFinancial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity 
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
 
 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit of theFinancial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of theFinancial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of theFinancial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of theFinancial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 
audit of theFinancial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters.  

  



Information Other than theFinancial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance 
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include theFinancial Statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on theFinancial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of theFinancial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with theFinancial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibilities for theFinancial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of theseFinancial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of theFinancial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing theFinancial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of theFinancial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether theFinancial Statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of theseFinancial Statements. 



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of theFinancial Statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

iii. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in theFinancial Statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of theFinancial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether theFinancial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in theFinancial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any 
identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act. The company has paid only sitting fees to its directors.  

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company has no pending litigation as on March 31, 2023 its financial position 
in its Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no amount, which is required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

  



 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 
 
 
 For SCAN & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm Reg. No.113954W) 
  

 
 

 CA Aman Saluja 
Place: Indore Partner 
Date: May30th, 2023 M. No. 181347 
UDIN: 23181347BGXVOH1176  



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on theFinancial Statements of KCL 
Infra Projects Limited 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section 
of our report to the Members of KCL Infra Projects Limitedof even date. 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KCL Infra Projects Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of theFinancial Statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the Company; and 

 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

 
 For SCAN & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm Reg. No.113954W) 
  

 
 

 CA Aman Saluia 
Place: Indore Partner 
Date: May 30th, 2023 
UDIN : 23181347BGXVOH1176 

M. No. 181347 



 

Annexure - B to Independent Auditor’s Report 

Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of 
our report of even date to the members ofKCL Infra Projects Limited 

i. In respect of the Company’s Fixed Assets: 
 

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 
 

b. As explained to us, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the 
management during the year, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies between the book 
records and the physical inventory have been noticed. In our opinion, the frequency of 
verification is reasonable. 

c. There are no immovable property held in the name of the Company. 

v. The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our 
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies were noticed. 
 

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the 
provisions of para 3 clauses (iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the company. 
 

vii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the 
investments made and guarantee given / issued.  
 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not accepted deposits from the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules, framed there under. As 
informed to us no Order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other Tribunal. 
 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 
Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the 
company. Thus, reporting under clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Statutory dues: 

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and 



Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it 
with the appropriate authorities. 

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, 
Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, 
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period 
of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
 

c) Details of dues of Service Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax which have not been 
deposited/ partiallydeposited as at March 31, 2023 on account of dispute are given 
below: 

 
Name of the Statute  Nature of 

Dues 
Amount 
(in Rs) 

Period to 
which 
amount 
relates  

Remarks 

MP VAT ACT 2002 VAT (Tax- 
Penalty)  
 

1,48,973/- AY 2015-16 Appellate Tribunal 

 

d) There are no dues of Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess which have not been deposited with 
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 
 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

  
ix. According to the records of the Company examined by us and as per the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial 
institution, bank or government as on the balance sheet date. The Company has not issued 
any debenture.  
 

x.  As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has raisedRs 47,39,58,000/- 
by way of right issue for the purpose of Working Capital requirement of Rs 35,00,00,000/-.As 
per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any term loans 
during the period under audit.There is an increase in Loan amount due to restructuring done in 
September, 2020. 

 
xi. During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, 

carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of such case by the management.  

 



xii. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company is not a 
Nidhi Company therefore, the provision of para 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed 
in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.  
 

xiv. a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.  

 
b. The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us. 
 
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, therefore the 
provision of para 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 

 
xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during 
the year, hence the provision of para 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
 

xvi. a. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 therefore, the provision of para 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company for the year under audit. 

b. The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during 
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

c. The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made 
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the 
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

xix. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid / provided for managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

 



xx. a. The company has not any other than ongoing projects, therefore provision of section 135 of 
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company; 

 
b. This clause is not applicable to the company. 

 
xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 

standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has 
been included in this report. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 For SCAN & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 
 (Firm Reg. No.113954W) 
  

 
 
 

 CA Aman Saluja 
Place: Indore Partner 
Date: May 30th, 2023 
UDIN: 23181347BGXVOH1176 

M. No. 181347 

 



 Particulars Notes
 As at 

31 March 2023 
 As at 

31 March 2022 

 Assets 
 Non-current Assets 

(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 1                 44,04,970                          51,85,654 
(b)  Intangible assets 
(c)  Capital Work-In-Progress 
(d)  Financial assets 

   - Investments 
   - Loans 2            20,93,05,639                     20,94,58,804 
   - Other Financial Assets 3                   3,64,017                            2,14,017 

(e)  Deferred Tax Assets  
(f)  Non-current Assets 
(g)  Other Non-current Assets  4                 91,60,000                          91,60,000 

 Total non-current assets            22,32,34,626                     22,40,18,475 

 Current assets  
 Inventories 5              7,97,47,819                       6,35,01,596 
 Financial Assets 

   - Trade Receivables 6            10,19,69,531                     11,37,86,392 
   - Cash and Cash Equivalents 7              1,50,88,939                       1,05,63,720 

          -Other 
 Other financial Assets 8            10,01,44,581 1,16,95,141                      
 Other Current Assets 9              1,30,60,387                          69,80,984 

 Total current assets            31,00,11,257                     20,65,27,833 
 Total assets  53,32,45,884          43,05,46,308                    

 Equity and Liabilities 
 Equity 

(a)  Equity Share Capital 10            24,80,14,854                       5,26,62,000 
(b)  Other Equity 11            15,26,48,370 14,47,90,625                    

KCL Infra Projects Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(b)  Other Equity 11            15,26,48,370 14,47,90,625                    
 Total equity            40,06,63,224                     19,74,52,625 

 Liabilities 
 Non Current Liabilities 

(a)  Financial Liabilities 
   - Borrowings 12              4,00,96,623                       3,69,25,569 
   - Other Financial Liabilities 13              1,11,50,000                       1,22,42,857 

(b)  Deferred Tax Liabilities  26,964.84                -                                    
(c)  Other Non Current Liability -                           -                                    

 Total non-current liabilities              5,12,73,588                       4,91,68,426 

 Current liabilities 
(a)  Financial Liabilities 

    - Borrowings                                       -   
    - Trade Payables 14              4,58,79,368                     11,48,34,091 
    - Other Financial Liabilities 15              2,90,27,012 6,46,64,222                      

(b)  Other Current Labilities 16                 64,02,691 44,26,944                         
(c)  Current Tax Labilities  

 Total current liabilities              8,13,09,072                     18,39,25,257 
 Total liabilities            13,25,82,659 23,30,93,683                    

 Total equity and liabilities             53,32,45,884                     43,05,46,308 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financials statements

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants

Mohan Jhawar Rahul Khande
(Managing Director) (Director)
(DIN 00495473) (DIN :08095192)

Place : Indore

Sunny Khande                                  Shivani Gupta

(Chief Financial Officer)              (Company Secretary)

Date: 30.05.2023

Membership No. 181347

KCL Infra Projects Limited

CA Aman Saluja
Partner

As per our report of even date
For SCAN & Co.

FRN: 113954W



Particulars Notes
 For the year ended

31 March 2023 
 For the year ended

31 March 2022 

Income
Revenue from operations 17 19,53,89,505                         15,57,14,806                         
Other income 18 2,03,24,270                           73,52,421                              

Total income 21,57,13,775                         16,30,67,227                         

Expenses
Purchases & Direct Expenses 19 20,65,64,771                         13,89,99,550                         
Changes in Inventories 20 (1,62,46,223)                      5,98,487                                
Employee benefits expense 21 51,04,472                              16,93,367                              
Finance costs 22 48,43,009                              69,78,814                              
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 7,58,591                                7,98,980                                
Other expenses 24 40,85,838                              74,95,699                              

Total expenses 20,51,10,458                         15,65,64,897                        
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,06,03,317                           65,02,330                              

Exceptional items -                                        
Profit before tax 1,06,03,317                           65,02,330                              

Tax expense:
Current tax 27,56,862                                                            16,84,897 
Corporate Tax                                      1,062 
Tax of earlier periods (37,148)                              -                                        
Deferred tax 25,766                                   8,920.00                                

Income tax expense 27,45,480                              16,94,879                              
Profit for the year 78,57,837                              48,07,451                              

Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans -                                        -                                        
Foreign exchange (loss) -                                        -                                        
Income tax related to item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss -                                        -                                        
Net other comprehensive (expense) not to be 
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

-                                        -                                        

Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods -                                        -                                        
Other comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year -                                        -                                        
Total comprehensive income for the year 78,57,837                              48,07,451                              
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity shares 25 0.06                                       0.18                                       

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financials statements

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For SCAN & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 113954W

Mohan Jhawar                                         Rahul Khande
(Managing Director)                                   (Director)

CA Aman Saluja (DIN 00495473)                                       (DIN :08095192)
Partner
Membership No. 181347

Place : Indore Sunny Khande                                         Shivani Gupta

Date : 30.05.2023 (Chief Financial Officer)                      (Company Secretary)

KCL Infra Projects Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2023

KCL Infra Projects Limited



Particulars  Year ended  Year ended 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022
A Cash flow from operating activities:

Profit before tax 1,06,03,317.16                   65,02,330.30                      
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortisation expense 7,58,591                            7,98,980                            
Interest expense 48,43,009                          69,78,814                          
Interest income (2,03,24,270)                      (73,52,421)                         
Loss on Sale of Assets -                                     -                                     

Operating profit before working capital changes (41,19,353)                         69,27,703                          

Adjustments for changes in working capital :
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (1,62,46,223)                      5,98,487                            
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade & other receivables 57,37,458                          73,81,348                          
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables & Current Liabilities (10,26,16,185)                    7,19,00,231                       

Cash flow from/ (used in) operations (11,72,44,303)                    8,68,07,769                       
Income taxes paid (27,45,480)                         (16,94,879)                         

Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (11,99,89,784)                    8,51,12,890                       

B Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work-in-progress, 
capital advances and intangibles under development) (24,575)                              -                                     
Proceeds From Sale of Fixed Assets 46,494.00                           (1,01,972)                           
Sale of Investments
Net proceeds (to)/from financial asset (8,85,99,440)                      (7,68,06,229)                      
Net proceeds (to)/from Non-current Asset
Interest received 2,03,24,270                       73,52,421                          
Net cash (used in)/flow from investing activities (6,82,53,251)                      (6,95,55,780)                      

C Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 19,53,52,854                     
Proceeds from financial liabilities                            21,05,162                              6,15,210 
Loan given during the period                              1,53,165 
Interest paid (48,43,009)                         (69,78,814)                         
Net cash (used in)/flow from financing activities: 19,27,68,171                     (63,63,604)                         

D Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,25,136                          91,93,507                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,05,63,720                       13,70,213                          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,50,88,856                       1,05,63,720                       

E Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Balances with banks
   on current accounts 1,38,98,017                       1,03,82,544                       
Cash in hand 11,90,922                          1,81,176                            

1,50,88,939                       1,05,63,720                       

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financials statements.

As per our report of even date.

For SCAN & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 113954W

Mohan Jhawar                              Rahul Khande
CA Aman Saluja (Managing Director)                        (Director)
Partner (DIN 00495473)                            (DIN :08095192)
Membership No: 181347

Place : Indore
Date : 30.05.2023 Sunny Khande                                  Shivani Gupta

(Chief Financial Officer)       (Company Secretary)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KCL Infra Projects Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2023
KCL Infra Projects Limited



Note 1 - Property, plant and equipment (Amount in Rs.)

Building Plant and 
machinery

Furniture and 
fixtures

Office equipments Computer Vehicles Total Building Plant and 
Machinery

Total

Deemed cost
As at 31st March 2020 16,47,924               68,267                   6,05,640               10,86,940                 4,53,093              19,18,877              65,59,307                -               -                    -            
Additions -                          -                         -                        14,00,354                 57,491                 31,64,526              46,22,372                
Deductions -                          -                         -                        -                            -                       -                         -                           
Adjustments* -                          -                         -                        -                            -                       -                         -                           
As at 31 March 2021 16,47,924               68,267                   6,05,640               24,87,293                 5,10,584              50,83,403              1,04,03,112             -               -                    -            

As at 1st April 2021 16,47,924               68,267                   6,05,640               24,87,293                 5,10,584              50,83,403              1,04,03,112             
Additions -                          -                         -                        75,972                      -                       26,000                   1,01,972                  
Deductions -                          -                         -                        -                            -                       -                         -                           
Adjustments* -                          -                         -                        -                            -                       -                         -                           
As at 31 March 2022 16,47,924               68,267                   6,05,640               25,63,265                 5,10,584              51,09,403              1,05,05,084             
Additions 31,802                      31,802                      
Deductions 53,896                      53,896                      
Adjustments*
As at 31 March 2023 16,47,924               68,267                   6,05,640               25,41,171                 5,10,584              51,09,403              1,04,82,990             

Accumulated depreciation
As at 31 March 2020 1,18,412                 60,982                   2,84,280               10,57,053                 3,97,015              17,89,095              37,06,837                -               -                    -            

As at 1st April 2020 1,18,412                 60,982                   2,84,280               10,57,053                 3,97,015              17,89,095              37,06,837                
Depreciation for the year 30,228                    -                         65,132.00             3,24,264.00              -                       3,93,988.00           8,13,612
Deductions -                          -                         -                        -                            -                       -                         -                           
Adjustments* -                          -                         -                        -                            -                       -                         -                           
As at 31 March 2021 1,48,640                 60,982                   3,49,412               13,81,317                 3,97,015              21,83,083              45,20,449                
Depreciation for the year 30,228                    60,592                  3,07,217                   18,207                 3,82,736                7,98,980                  
Deductions
Adjustments*
As at 31 March 2022 1,78,868                 60,982                   4,10,004               16,88,534                 4,15,222              25,65,819              53,19,429                
Depreciation for the year 30,227                    42,510                  2,99,447                   10,620                 3,75,787                7,58,591                  
Deductions
Adjustments*
As at 31 March 2023 2,09,095                 60,982                   4,52,514               19,87,981                 4,25,842              29,41,606              60,78,020                

As at 31 March 2023 14,38,829               7,285                     1,53,126               5,53,191                   84,742                 21,67,797              44,04,970                
As at 31 March 2022 14,69,056               7,285                     1,95,636               8,74,732                   95,362                 25,43,584              51,85,655                -               -                    -            
As at 31 March 2021 14,99,284               7,285                     2,56,228               11,05,976                 1,13,569              29,00,320              58,82,662                 -               -                    -            
As at 31 March 2020. 15,29,512               7,285                     3,21,360               14,30,241                 1,13,569              32,94,308              66,96,276                 -               -                    -            

KCL Infra Projects Limited

Tangible Assets
Particulars

Capital Work in Progress

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2023
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Particulars As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

2 Loans- Non-current ((Unsecured and considered good)
Other loans and advances 20,93,05,639                20,94,58,804                

Total 20,93,05,639                20,94,58,804                

3 Other financial assets As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

Security deposits 3,64,017                       2,14,017                       
Total 3,64,017                       2,14,017                       

4 Other Non-Current Assets (Unsecured and Considered Good) As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

Advance given against property purchase 91,60,000                     91,60,000                     
Total 91,60,000                     91,60,000                     

5 Inventories As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

Stock in Trade*
Land & Building Including Development Cost 5,93,67,819                  2,84,08,814                  
Stock of Trading Goods 1,21,80,000                  1,69,57,628                  

Work-in-progress
Property & Flats under development 82,00,000                     1,81,35,154                  

 
Notes to financials statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Property & Flats under development 82,00,000                     1,81,35,154                  
Total 7,97,47,819                  6,35,01,596                  

* Valued at cost or net realizable value which ever is lower

6 Trade receivables As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

Unsecured
Considered Goods 10,19,69,531                11,37,86,392                 
Considered Doubtful

10,19,69,531                11,37,86,392                 
Less: Provision for Doubt Full Debts

Total 10,19,69,531                11,37,86,392                 

7 Cash and cash equivalents As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

Cash on hand(As verified by Management) 11,90,922                     1,81,176                       
Balances with scheduled banks:
Corporation Bank 2,905                            2,905                            
Indian Overseas Bank 26,317                          4,288                            
Indian Overseas Bank(Current A/C) 902                               1,657                            
IOB 5,393                            5,393                            
State Bank of India 1,37,74,403                  1,03,68,302                  
Kotak - KCL Infra Call Money Account 79,724                          
Kotak Mahindra Baank - Current Account 8,373                            

Total 1,50,88,939                  1,05,63,720                  
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8 Other Financial Assets
Advance for Expenses 10,01,44,581                1,16,95,141                  

Total 10,01,44,581                1,16,95,141                  

9 Other Current assets As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

Prepaid Expenses 2,139                            12,826                          
Duties & Taxes 61,42,314                     31,10,195                     
IT Refund 31,13,688                     
TDS receivable 36,64,273                     -                                
Advances for Expenses/Purchases 1,37,973                       38,57,963                     

Total 1,30,60,387                  69,80,984                     
 

10 Share capital As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

A). Authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Authorized

55,00,00,000                55,00,00,000                

Total 55,00,00,000                55,00,00,000                

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

15,50,67,938                5,26,62,000                  

2,75,00,000 equity shares of Rs.2 each
(31st March 2023, 2,75,00,000 equity shares)

77,533,969 equity shares of Rs. 2 each
(31st March 2022, 2,63,31,000 equity shares)

Isssued, Subscribed and partly paid up Shares

18,57,94,131 euity shares of Rs. 0.5 each 9,29,46,916                  -                                

Total 24,80,14,854                5,26,62,000                  

Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding as the beginning and end of the year:

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 2,63,31,000            5,26,62,000                                2,63,31,000                  5,26,62,000                  
Movement during the year 9,76,76,427            19,53,52,854                              -                                -                                
At the end of the year 12,40,07,427          24,80,14,854                              2,63,31,000                  5,26,62,000.00              

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

(c) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid
As at 

31st March 2023
As at 

31st March 2022
1 Mr. Mohan Jhawar Number of Shares 38,02,831                     38,02,831                     

% Holding 4.90% 14.44%
2 Mr. Manan Jhawar Number of Shares 1,05,74,870                   10,57,487                      

% Holding 13.64% 4.02%
3 Mr. Mohan Deokishan Jhawar HUF Number of Shares 8542000.00 8,54,650                        

% Holding 11.02% 3.25%

As at 31 March 2023

The company has only one class of equity shares, having a par value of Rs.2/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible to one vote per share.

Particulars

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

As at 31 March 2022
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Equity shares of Rs. 2 Partially paid 0.50 per share
As at 

31st March 2023
As at 

31st March 2022

1 Mr. Mohan Jhawar Number of Shares 3,47,81,139                  -
% Holding 14.68% -

2 Sanjay Popat Lal Jain Number of Shares 2,35,47,256                  -
% Holding 12.68% -

3 Shashank Praveen Chandra Doshi Number of Shares 2,35,47,255                  -
% Holding 12.68% -

4 Hetal Shashank Doshi Number of Shares 2,35,47,255                  -
% Holding 12.68% -

5 Amrutlal Gordhandas Thobani Number of Shares 2,20,00,000                  -
% Holding 11.84% -

6 Jignesh Amrutlal Thobani Number of Shares 1,80,00,000                  -
% Holding 9.69% -

7 Varshaben Jignesh Kumar Thobani Number of Shares 1,50,00,000                  -
% Holding 8.07% -

11 Other Equity As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31-Mar-22

(i) Retained earnings
Opening balance 2,95,85,534                  2,47,78,173.87             
Add: Profits for the year 78,57,837                     48,07,451.30                

Closing balance 3,74,43,370                  2,95,85,625                  

(ii) General reserves
Opening balance 10,00,000                     10,00,000
Movement for the yearMovement for the year
Closing balance 10,00,000                     10,00,000                     

(iii) Capital reserve
Opening balance 1,30,28,000                  1,30,28,000
Less : Utilized During the Year
Closing balance 1,30,28,000                  1,30,28,000                   

(iv) Securities Premium
Opening balance 10,11,77,000                10,11,77,000
Add/Less : Addition/Utilization During the Year
Closing balance 10,11,77,000                10,11,77,000                
Total 15,26,48,370                14,47,90,625

12 Borrowings As at As at 

 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured -At Amortised cost

Term Loans
- Axis Bank @ 1,03,412                       10,06,880                     
- LIC Housing Finance Ltd. ^ 4,21,80,092                  3,45,62,751                  
- BMW India Financial Services Pvt. Ltd# 13,12,055                     13,55,938                     

4,35,90,354                  3,69,25,569                  
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13 Other Financial Liability As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Rent Deposit                    1,11,50,000 1,16,24,372                   
Deposit- Workie                                   -                              33,527 

^ Secured by hypothecation of company's property and rent income through escrow account. The loan of Rs. 80 Lacs out of sanction amount of Rs. 96 
Lacs, repayable in 120 equal monthly installments of Rs. 1,08,154/-commencing from 13-Mar-2018 to in the month of april the company opted for
moratorium of 5 months after that the company also restructured the loan under which the institution has allowed 24 month moratorium
accordingly the tenure of loan changed.. The interest rate was 11.80 % p.a. and later its been revised to 11.85%

@ 
-Secured by hypothecation of a vehicle.
i. The loan of Rs. 13.60 Lac repayable in 36 equal monthly installments of Rs. 44525/- commencing from 01-06-2018 in the month of april the
company opted for moratorium of 5 months accordingly the tenure of loan changed. The last date of EMI will be 01-11-2022 . The interest rate was
11.00 % p.a. and later its been revised to 10.5%

ii. The loan of Rs. 8.30 Lac repayable in 90 equal monthly installments of Rs. 13,566/- commencing from 10-09-2019 in the month of april the
company opted for moratorium of 5 months accordingly the tenure of loan changed. The last date of EMI will be 10-02-2027 . The interest rate is
9.5%.

-Secured by hypothecation of Diesal Generator Set
The loan of Rs. 6.90 Lac repayable in 36 equal monthly installments of Rs. 22,427/- commencing from 10-02-2021 in the month of april the company
opted for moratorium of 5 months accordingly the tenure of loan changed. The last date of EMI will be 10-07-2023 . The interest rate is 10.5%.

# Secured with hypothecation of vehicle. The loan of 26.00 Lakhs repayable  in 60 equal installments of Rs. 53657/- commencing from 01st of Jan 
2021  in the month of april the company opted for moratorium of 5 months accordingly the tenure of loan changed. The last date of EMI will be 01-06-
2025 . The interest rate 8.75%

Deposit- Workie                                   -                              33,527 
Borrowing-Axis Car Loan                                   -                           5,84,958 

1,11,50,000                  1,22,42,857                  

14  Trade  payables As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Due to
micro enterprises and small enterprises*
other than micro enterprises and small enterprises                    4,57,86,122                  11,44,98,860 
Construction & Infrastructure 93,246                          3,35,231                        

4,58,79,368                  11,48,34,091                

15 Other financial liabilities As at As at 
 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other Liabilities -                                
Labour Contractors 2,47,71,833                  1,36,00,000                  
Creditors for expenses 7,61,449                       2,11,86,846                  
Interest Payable -                                64,58,749                     
Advance from Party -                                2,34,18,627                  
Current Maturities of long term loans 34,93,731                       -                                

2,90,27,012                  6,46,64,222                  

* The Company has no dues to suppliers registered under micro, small and medium enterprises 
Development act, 2006 ( MSMED ACT)
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16 Other Current Liabilities As at As at
 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Statutory dues
Provision 2,57,891                       2,97,178                       
Provision for tax 44,42,219                     20,75,873                     
Creditor for Expenses -                                1,35,558                       
Internal Audit Fees 89,200                          67,200                          
Advance from Party -                                875                               
Salary Payable 16,13,382                     17,17,000                     
Other Current liability -                                1,33,260                       

64,02,691                     44,26,944                     

 For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
17 Revenue from operations

 Revenue from sale of goods 5,96,03,709                  3,56,90,147                  
 Other Revenue 13,57,85,796                12,00,24,659                

19,53,89,505                15,57,14,806                

 For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
18 Other Income

Other miscellaneous income 5,18,399                       
Interest income 1,98,05,937                  73,51,420                     

Discount (66)                                1,001                            

2,03,24,270                  73,52,421                     

 For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
19 Purchase and Direct Expenses

Purchase and Development cost 18,20,21,013                12,30,35,588                
Other direct Expenses 2,45,43,758                  1,59,63,962                  

20,65,64,771                13,89,99,550                

 For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
20 Change In Inventory

Opening Inventories 6,35,01,596                  6,41,00,083                  
Closing Inventories 7,97,47,819                  6,35,01,596                  
Changes in inventories (1,62,46,223)                 5,98,487                       

 For the year ended For the year ended

                           45,016 31-Mar-22
21 Employee Benefits Expense

Salary 9,32,001                       9,22,928                       
Staff Welfare 5,06,471                       2,69,438                       
Directors Remuneration

14,38,472                     11,92,366                     
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21.1 Details of Remuneration:
Managing Director

- Salary 31,50,000                     -                                    
- Contribution to statutory funds

Chief Financial Officer
- Salary 5,16,000                       5,01,000                       
- Contribution to statutory funds

36,66,000                     5,01,000                       

 For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
22 Finance Costs

Interest charged by 
-Financial Institutions and banks 48,43,009                     67,90,888                     
-Others -                                1,87,926                       

48,43,009                     69,78,814                     

 For the year ended For the year ended

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
23 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,58,591                       7,98,980                       
Amortization of intangible assets

7,58,591                       7,98,980                       

 For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

24 Other Expenses24 Other Expenses
AMC charges of lift 35,367                          33,365                          
Annual Maintenance Charges 15,254                          -                                
Brokerage 5,000                            -                                
Bank Charges & Commission -                                6,805                            
Business Promotion 15,766                          7,466                            
Conveyance Expenses (26,470)                         96,408                          
Digital Marketing Expense 4,899                            -                                
Card Joining Fee -                                1,180                            
Celebration Expenses -                                36,400                          
Electricity and Water Expenses 2,29,120                       1,96,974                       
Insurance Charges 26,326                          59,352                          
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 21,66,228                     58,16,546                     
Office Expenses 16,765                          51,481                          
Other Expenses 3,439                            1,850                            
Postage, Telegram & telephone -                                11,540                          
Printing & Stationery 29,548                          21,429                          
Rent, Rates & Taxes 334                               5,162                            
Repair & Maintenance 4,62,318                       1,75,090                       
Tour & Travelling Expenses 4,47,752                       1,03,734                       
Late Filing Charges 750                               4,560                            
RTA Fees 51,517                          -                                
Misc Exp 2,833                            12,188                          
Municipal Tax 25,000                          2,63,559                       
New Lift NOC (8,000)                           -                                
Right Issue Exp 2,32,000                       2,20,000                       
Renovation Exp -                                1,69,611                       
Rent Agreement Registration Charges 39,000                          60,000                          
Project - Accomodation Exp -                                999                               
Uniform Exp 11,272                          -                                

37,86,018                     73,55,699                     
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 For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

24.1  Details of Auditor's Remuneration
Statutory & Tax Audit Fee 1,32,000                       1,18,000                       
For other services 22,000                          22,000                          

1,54,000                       1,40,000                       

 For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

25  Earning Per Share (EPS)

i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and 
Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs.)

78,57,837                     48,07,451                     

ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as 
denominator for calculating EPS

12,40,07,427                2,63,31,000                  

iii) Basic and Diluted Earnings per share 0.06                              0.18                               
iii) Nominal value of an equity share 2                                   2.00                               

As per our report of even date.
For SCAN & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 113954W

Mohan Jhawar                                    Rahul Khande
CA Aman Saluja (Managing Director)                             (Director)
Partner (DIN 00495473)                                 (DIN :08095192)
Membership No: 181347

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

KCL Infra Projects Limited

Membership No: 181347

Place : Indore
Date : 30.05.2023 Sunny Khande                                  Shivani Gupta

(Chief Financial Officer)             (Company Secretary)



KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
Notes to Financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

 

1. Corporate Information 

KCL Infra Projects Limited ('the Company') is a Limited Company, domiciled in India under the provision of 
the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at B-3/204, SAKET COMPLEX THANE (WEST), THANE, 
MAHARASTRA 400601, India. The Company is engaged in the business of Construction & Infrastructure 
Activities. In addition to that company is also engaged in providing advisory services. 
 

2. Significant Accounting Policies of Financial Statements 

The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial 
statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods 
presented in these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated. 

 

(i)  Statement of compliance 

The financial statement have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (“Ind AS”) 
notified, under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2016  and the 
relevant provisions of the Act. 
 

(ii) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements  

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), 
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are 
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period,as explained in the accounting policies mentioned 
below. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of 
assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

Functional and Presentation of Currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.  

 

(iii) Use of Estimates, Judgments and Assumptions 

In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions 
about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. 

 

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of 
impairment, useful lives of property and plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions 
and contingent liabilities, fair value measurements of financial instruments and retirement benefit 
obligations as discussed below. 



 

Impairment 

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after 
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates 
and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using 
internal forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the 
present value. 

 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of 
each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation and amortization expense in 
future periods.  

 

Valuation of deferred tax assets 

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 

 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event and it is 
probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.  

 

Fair value measurements of financial instruments 

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques 
including Discounted Cash Flow Model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets 
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value. 
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.  

 

Retirement benefit obligations 

The Company’s retirement benefit obligations are subject to number of judgments including discount rates, 
inflation and salary growth. Significant judgments are required when setting these criteria and a change in 
these assumptions would have a significant impact on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet 
and the statement of profit and loss. The Company sets these judgments based on previous experience and 
third party actuarial advice.  

  



(iv) Property, plant and equipment 

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This 
recognition principle is applied to costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and 
equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair 
and maintenance costs, including regular servicing, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as 
incurred. When a replacement occurs, the carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognized. Where an 
item of property, plant and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, these 
components are accounted for as separate items. 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring 
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are 
capitalized. Borrowing costs incurred during the period of construction is capitalized as part of cost of 
qualifying asset. 

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between sale proceeds and carrying value of such item, and is recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss. 
 

Subsequent expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with 
the expenditure will flow to the company. 
 

Depreciation of Fixed Assets 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on Written down value method (WDV) as per 
the useful life of the assets in the manner as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
estimated useful life of assets and estimated residual value is taken as prescribed under Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013.  
Depreciation on additions during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to date of 
addition/installation. Depreciation on assets disposed/discarded is charged up to the date on which such 
asset is sold. 
 

(v) Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost/deemed cost applied on transition to Ind AS, less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of 
investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognized, if required immediately to its recoverable 
amount. On disposal of such investments, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying 
amount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

(vi) Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized to 
the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and the revenue can be 
measured reliably and there is no continuing effective control/managerial involvement in respect of the 
revenue activity as described below. 

Sale of Services 

Revenue from sale of services is recognized when agreed contractual task has been completed or services 
are rendered. 

Interest and Dividend 

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend income is 
recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the company’s right to receive payment is established. 

 

 



(vii) Employee benefits 

 

a) Defined benefit plans 

The liability for gratuity a defined benefit plan is determined annually by a qualified actuary using the 
projected unit credit method.  

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed 5 Years of service with company at the 
time when the employee leaves the company as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on 
plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized 
immediately in OCI. Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by 
applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net defined liability 
(asset) at the start of the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and 
benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans 
are recognized in profit or loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The 
Companyrecognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement 
occurs. 

b) Defined contribution plans 

The Company’s payments to the defined contribution plans are recognized as expenses during the period in 
which the employees perform the services that payment covers. Defined contribution plan comprise of 
contribution to the employees’ provident fund with government, Employees’ State Insurance and Pension 
Scheme. 

c) Short term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for 
the amount expected to be paid if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 
amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 

d) Other Employee benefits 

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of 
obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an actuarial valuation.  

(viii) Income Tax 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in OCI. 

a) Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising from 
dividends. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company: 

a)  has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and 

b)  Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

b) Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 



Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the asset to be recovered.  

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, 
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax 
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be 
measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be 
realized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if: 

a) The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;  

b) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority on the same taxable entity. 

 

(ix) Foreign currency transactions and translations 

The financial statements of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of 
the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the company at 
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency 
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Difference arising on settlement of monetary items are generally 
recognized in statement of profit and loss.  

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into 
the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Exchange difference 
arising out of these transactions are generally recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

 

(x) Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, 
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended 
use or sale. 

Qualifying asset are the assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use.  Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Investment income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

 

 



(xi) Cash and Cash Equivalent 

In cash flow statement, Cash and cash equivalent  includes the cash and Cheques in hand, bank balances, 
demand deposits with bank and other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturity of three 
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Bank overdraft is shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of 
financing activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilities in 
the balance sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow statement. 

 

(xii) Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effect of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments 
and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flow from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company is segregated based on the available 
information. 

 

(xiii) Earnings per Share 

i) Basic earnings per shares is arrived at based on net profit / (loss) after tax available to equity shareholders 
divided by Weighted average number of equity shares, adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued 
during the year (if any) and excluding treasury shares. 

ii) Diluted earnings per shares is calculated by dividing Profit attributable to equity holders after tax divided 
by Weighted average number of shares considered for basic earning per shares including potential dilutive 
equity shares. 

 

(xiv) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and there is reliable estimate of the amount of obligation. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arise from 
past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable 
estimate of the amount cannot be made.  

(xv) Leases 

As a Lessee 

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. Leases under which the 
company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. When 
acquired, such assets are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the 
inception of lease, whichever is lower. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and 
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Other leases are treated as operating leases, with payments are recognized as expense in the statement of 
profit and loss on a straight line basis over the lease term. 

 

 

 



 

(xvi) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-financial 
asset or a group of non-financial assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates 
the amount of impairment loss. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from 
other assets or group of assets is considered as cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an 
estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made. 

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable 
amount. Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the company 
considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. 
If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is 
reversed through profit or loss.    

 

(xvii) Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added 
to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The 
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency foreign exchange forward 
contracts, interest rate swaps and currency options; and embedded derivatives in the host contract. 

 

Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of 
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or 
where appropriate, a shorter period. 

 

(A) Financial assets 

 

Classification 

The Company shall classify financial assets and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for 
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or 
loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 



 

 

Measured at Amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 
cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is 
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other 
receivables.  
 

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measurement FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
the financial assets, and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 
 

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the 
company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the 
profit and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is 
reported as interest income using the EIR method. 
 

Financial Asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL is a residual category for financial asset. Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the company may elect to classify a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or 
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the profit and loss. 

 

De-recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial 
assets) is primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when: 

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

ii)  The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 



iii)  When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into 
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards 
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognize the 
transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company 
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained. 

iv)  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 
that the company could be required to repay. 

 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a)Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt 
securities, deposits, and bank balance. 

b)Trade receivables. 
 

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on: 

i) Trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right 
from its initial recognition.  

ii) For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for 
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a 
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.   

 

(B) Financial liabilities 
 

Classification 

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, 
shall be subsequently measured at fair value. 
 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss or amortized costs.  

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, financial 
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 
 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 



category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 
 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at 
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk arerecognized in OCI. This gains/loss 
is not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 
 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
 

Measurement of fair values 

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for financial 
instruments. 
The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The 
management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party 
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the management 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet 
the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be 
classified. 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as 
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in 
the valuation techniques as follows. 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value 
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 
  



 

KCL INFRA PROJECTS LIMITED 
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Financial Instruments 

30.1 Risk management frameworks      

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Company’s primary risk management focus is to minimize potential adverse effects of risks on its 
financial performance. The Company’s risk management assessment and policies and processes are established 
to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to 
monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are 
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Board of Directors 
and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and management 
policies and processes.       

(i) Market risk       

Market risk is the risk of changes the market prices on account of foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
Commodity prices, which shall affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of its financial 
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure 
within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the returns.     

(a) Interest Rate Risk       
Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rate. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair value of fixed 
interest bearing financial instrument because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate 
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of fluctuations in the interest rates. 
 

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the borrowing 
from banks. Currently company is not using any mitigating factor to cover the interest rate risk. 
 

Particulars As at 31st March,2023 As at 31st March,2022 
Interest rate risk exposure   
Borrowings from banks & Financial 
Institution 

4,35,90,354 
 

3,77,80,364 

Total borrowings 4,35,90,354 3,77,80,364 
 

(ii)Credit Risk       

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument 
fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from 
customers. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously 
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal 
course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that 
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments. 
    

 
 



Trade and other receivables       

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each 
customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry has an influence on 
credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and 
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the 
normal course of business.  

Trade Receivable ageing schedule:- 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
 

 

 Less than 6 
months 

6 months -1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Total 

(i) Undisputed Trade 
receivables – 
considered good 

 
 
81,623,243 

 
 
- 

 
 
83,11,529 

 

 
 
6,10,000 

 
 
11,424,759 

 
 
101,969,531 

 
 

(ii) Undisputed Trade 
Receivables – 
considered doubtful 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 
 
 

(iii) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered good 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
 

(iv) Disputed Trade 
Receivables 
considered doubtful 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
TOTAL (A) 

 
 

 
 
81,623,243 

 
 
- 

 
 
83,11,529 

 

 
 
6,10,000 

 
 
11,424,759 

 
 
101,969,531 

 
 

 
Less: - Allowance for 

Bad &Doubtful Debts 
(B) 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 
 
 

 
TOTAL (A-B) 

 

 
81,623,243 

 
 
- 

 
83,11,529 

 

 
6,10,000 

 
11,424,759 

 
101,969,531 

 
 

 

 

  



 
Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as 
follows:         

           (Amount in Rs.) 
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

Past due 0–90 days 62,124,441 10,101,358 
Past due 91–180 days 15,789,100 - 
Past due more than 180 days 24,055,989 103,685,036 
TOTAL 101,969,531 113,786,392 
 
Thefollowing table summarizes the change in the loss allowances measured using expected credit loss 

 
Particulars Amount 

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 - 
Provided during the year - 
Reversed during the year - 

 
 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 
 
(iii) Liquidity Risk   
   
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become 
due. 
The Company has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. The 
company's treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In 
addition, process and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management 
monitors the company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 
 
Expected contractual maturity for derivative and non derivative Financial Liabilities: 

As at 31st March, 2023 Carrying 
amount 

Less than 1 
year     

1-5 years >5 years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities     
Secured term loans and borrowings 4,35,90,354 - - 4,35,90,354 
Current maturities of long term 
borrowings 

34,93,731 34,93,731   

Trade Payables 
Other financial liabilities  

4,58,79,368 4,58,79,368   
4,01,77,012 2,90,27,012 1,11,50,000  

Total 13,31,40,465 7,84,00,111 1,11,50,000 4,35,90,354 

Derivative Financial Liabilities 
Forward Contact Outstanding     
Total - - - - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



As at 31st March, 2022 Carrying 
amount 

Less than 1 
year     

1-5 years >5 years 

Non-derivative financial liabilities 
    Secured term loans and borrowings 37,780,364 - 4,034,275 33,746,089 

Current maturities of long term 
borrowings 

854,794 854,794 - - 

Trade Payables 
Other financial liabilities  

114,834,091 114,834,091 - - 
76,907,079 64,664,222 12,242,857 - 

Total 230,376,328 180,353,107 16,277,132 33,746,089 

Derivative Financial Liabilities 
Forward Contact Outstanding - - - - 
Total - - - - 

 
 
Note 32.2 Capital Management 
 
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities 
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. The 
Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that 
it can continue to provide returns to shareholders and other stake holders. 
Gearing Ratio 
 
A. The Company’s adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio was as follow: 

 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 

2023 
As at 31st March, 

2022 

Equity Share Capital 24,80,14,854 52,662,000 
Other Equity 15,26,48,371 144,790,676 
Total Equity 40,06,63,225 197,452,676 
Non-current borrowings 4,00,96,623 36,925,569 
Current maturities of long term borrowings  34,93,731 8,54,794 
Gross Debt 4,35,90,354 3,77,80,363 
Gross debt as above 4,35,90,354 3,77,80,363 
Less: cash and cash equivalents 1,50,88,939 10,563,720 

Net Debt 28,501,415 27,216,643 

Net Debt to equity ratio (0.07) (.13) 
 
Note 32.3 Financial instruments by Category and fair value hierarchy     
            
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial 
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values. 
  
The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories 
above have been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted 
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of 
counter parties. 
 

 

 



As at 31st March,2023 Fair Value Measurement Fair Value Hierarchy 

Particulars 
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost 
Level-

1 
Level-

2 
Level

-3 
            

Financial assets        
(i)  Investments in Equity Instruments - -  - - - 
(ii) Trade receivables - - 10,19,69,531 - - - 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,50,88,939 - - - 

(iv) Bank Balance other than above - -  - - - 

(v)  Loan 
(vi) Other financial assets   

20,93,05,639 
3,64,017    

Total    326,728,126 
   

Financial liabilities    4,35,90,354 
   

 
(i)  Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 
(iii) Other financial liability 
(iv) Current maturities of long term 
borrowing 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

 
 

4,58,79,368 
4,01,77,012 
34,93,731 

 
 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

- 
- 
- 

 
- 
 

       

Total   89,550,111 
   

 
 

As at 31st March,2022 Fair Value Measurement Fair Value Hierarchy 

Particulars 
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized 

Cost 
Level-

1 
Level-

2 
Level

-3 
            

Financial assets        
(i)  Investments in Equity Instruments - - - - - - 
(ii) Trade receivables - -  113,786,392 - - - 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 10,563,720 - - - 
(iv) Bank Balance other than above - - - - - - 

(v)  Loan 
(vi) Other financial assets 

  
 

20,94,58,804 
2,14,017 

   

Total    334,022,933 
   

Financial liabilities  -  37,780,364 
   

(i)  Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 
(iii) Other financial liability 
(iv) Current maturities of long term 
borrowing 

- - 
 114,834,091 
   76,907,078 

     854,794 
- - - 

 - -     
Total   230,376,327    



To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has 
classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the Ind AS. An explanation for each 
level is given below. 
 
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 
 
 33.Balance in respect of Sundry Creditors, Sundry Debtors & Loans and Advance (including interest  
thereon) are subject to confirmation from respective parties. 
 
34. Additional information pursuant to provisions of paragraph 5 of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Expenditure incurred in foreign currency during the year Nil 
CIF Value of Imports of Capital Goods Nil 
 
35. Contingent Liabilities  

 

Particulars As on 31st March, 2023 As on 31st March, 2022 

Related to Indirect Taxes 148,973 148,973 
 
36. As per the definition of Business Segment and Geographical Segment contained in Ind AS 108 “Segment             
Reporting”, the management is of the opinion that the Company’s operation comprise of operating in 
Primary and Secondary market and incidental activities thereto, there is neither more than one reportable 
business segment nor more than one reportable geographical segment and, therefore, segment information 
is not required to be disclosed. 
 
37. Details of amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise under the head current liabilities, based 
on the information available with the Company and relied upon by the auditors- Nil (Previous Year – Nil). 
 
38. In the opinion of the management, all current assets, loans and advances would be realizable at least an 
amount equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Also there is no impairment of 
fixed assets. 
39. Previous year's figures have been reclassified regrouped and rearranged wherever found necessary to 
make them comparable 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40.Related Party Disclosures  
(i)List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken 
place and relationships: 
 

Nature of Relationship Name of the Related Party 
Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
 

Mohan Jhawar (Managing Director) 
Sunny Khande (CFO)  
Shivani Gupta (Company Secretary Cum  
Compliance Officer) 

Enterprises where key management 
personnel exercise significant influence 

KCL Stock Broking Ltd. 
KCL Realities Ltd. 
KCL Entertainment Pvt. Ltd. 
C3 Mutispeciality Hospital limited 
(Rent Deposit taken out of lease agreement 
amounting to Rs.1,11,50,000) 
 

 
(ii) Disclosure in Respect of Related Party Transactions during the year : 

Particulars Relationship FY2022-23 FY 2021-22 
Remuneration Paid    
Mohan Jhawar KMP 31,50,000 - 
Sunny Khade KMP 5,16,000 5,01,000 
ShrutiSikarwar KMP - 3,350 
Shivani Gupta KMP 3,43,824 2,02,856 

Total 4,009,824 7,07,206 
 
As per our report of even date attached 
  

 
For and behalf of the Board of Directors 
     KCL Infra Projects Limited  
 
 
 

  
For SCAN& Co.       Mohan Jhawar Rahul Khande 
Chartered Accountants  (Managing Director)         (Director) 
(Firm Reg. No.: 113954W)      (DIN: 00495473) (DIN:08095192) 
   

 
  
CA AmanSaluja         Sunny Khande Shivani Gupta 
Partner  Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary  
M.No. 181347   
UDIN : 23181347BGXVOH1176   
   
Place:INDORE    
Date:30 May 2023   
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